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The School’s Vision Statement

“Middleton Grange School assists families in the
education of their children by providing an
environment in which the Biblical truths of
Jesus Christ are taught and lived.”
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Principal

This year has seen some significant changes in the life of Middleton Grange School. Mr Richard Vanderpyl
resigned after nine years as Principal and left in March to take up a position as Head of School for an
International School in Hong Kong. Mr Rod Thompson acted as Interim Principal until the end of Term 2,
after which I took over as the seventh Principal of Middleton Grange School. I would like to thank the
Board of Trustees and the wider school community for their warm welcome and support of me during my
first six months as Principal. I feel very humbled to be able to return to Middleton Grange School to serve
our Lord and lead the school through its next season.

None of us will likely ever forget the March 15 terror attacks in Christchurch at the two Mosques. Our
deepest sympathies and condolences went out to the Muslim community and those affected by this tragedy
and now we are all adjusting to the ‘new normal’ and the awareness that New Zealand and Christchurch
are no longer free from such dangers.

The school continues to be blessed with a strong and capable Board of Trustees who have a heart for
ensuring the school delivers biblically based teaching and a first-rate general education. The school had
Board of Trustees elections in the middle of the year with three members finishing their terms and three
new Parent Trustees being elected. Thanks to Amanaki Misa and Glenn Buckner who were the Board of
Trustees Co-Chairs who completed their term on our Board this year, as well as to Jeremy Ferguson who
also completed his term this year. A special thank you also to Madi Millar, our Student Trustee for 2019.
Mr Andy Van Ameyde retired from the Board of Trustees after approximately 25 years of service including
as Chair and Deputy Chair on several occasions. He also retired from his role as CEN Co-ordinator after
many years of service to the Christian Education Network and it was wonderful to acknowledge and
celebrate his faithful service in these areas with many of the people that he worked closely with.

With all change however, we can be sure in the knowledge that “Jesus Christ is the same yesterday and
today and forever.” Hebrews 13:8 (ESV) and that "I am the Alpha and the Omega, the first and the last,
the beginning and the end.” Revelation 22:13 (ESV)

One of the very special moments in the life of the school this year was the House Haka competition, held
only for the second time towards the end of Term 3. The school Haka, written by Matua Steve Reid,
speaks of the Gospel and hope in God and includes the school verse in te reo “Ma tou marama ka kite ai
matou i te marama” which we know in English as “In thy light shall we see light”. Each House performed
the school Haka with a wonderful spirit and then all four Houses united to perform the Haka against each
other and then to staff, parents, and guests. The gym resounded with strong voices, actions, and culture.
This event was a wonderful climax to Te Wiki o te reo Maori and demonstrates our schools strengthening
of our school spirit and enhancing of our bi-cultural bonds.

Each year we are blessed with a strong Student Leadership Team and this year was no exception: Head
Leaders Zinan Bennett and Jess Swan were ably supported by Jono McPheat and Gloria Agnew. Chantelle
Gribben as Maori Leader ensured the school had growth and support in this important aspect of our school
lives. This team were wonderful examples of servant leadership to the school community.

Middleton Grange School has continued to be a part of a Community of Learning (Kahui Ako) with five
other Christian schools, two Early Childhood Centres and two Tertiary institutions. We held a Teacher Only
Day on the 20 September with a focus on ‘Wellbeing” and were very fortunate to have Dr Lucy Hone and
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Sally Murray work with us for the day. This event and the ongoing work within the Kahui Ako show the
benefit of schools working collaboratively together for the benefit of our students and communities. We
look forward to this work progressing in the future with both staff and students benefitting from improved
outcomes.

May the Lord continue to watch over and bless Middleton Grange School and may we continue to be
obedient to his Word.

“Be strong and courageous. Do not fear or be in dread of them, for it is the LORD your God who goes with
you. He will not leave you or forsake you.” Deuteronomy 31:6 (ESV)

Mike Vannoort
Principal
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MIDDLETON GRANGE SCHOOL

ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

School Directory

Minlatry Mumbar: 335

Principal: Michasl Vannoort

School Address: 0 Acaala Avanun, Upper Riscaron, Chrislohurch 8041
Saohool Postal Addrass: 0 Acacln Avenun, Uppar Riccaron, Chnstshurch 8041
School Phona: {03) 348-AA26

School Emall: olfnilmiddiaion sohool ne

Membaers of the Board of Trusteos

Hame Position How Position Galnad Docupation Tarm Expired! Explras
Michaal Smith Chir Parson Elaclad rola Ganaral Manager - Farming! 1T Till next slections | May 2022
Michaal Vannoor  Principal ax Ofioio St Appoinimand Role Frincipal Condinuous

John Paaz Dopuly Chainperson  Elacted rale Quantily Surseyor Tl naxt elactions |/ May 20232
Malanle Hikuroa  Parent Trustes Elactad rola Manages Kip MoGaath Tl naxt alactions / May 2022
Rachasl Hurren  Parant Trusies Elactad rola Human Resources | Psychalogy Tl naxt alactiona | May 2022
Ty Kan Parent Trustes Elactad rola Finance Consultant Tl naxit alacticns [ May 2022
Baoky Gaorgs Propristor Trustes Propriator Appointad Clinlcal Lead, COHB Continuous

David Gillan Proprisdar Trushen Propriator Apgaoinlad [amchar Conlinuous

Mark Larson Propriefor Trusben Proprisbor Appointed CED Propriatar Conlinuous

Fatar Marahall Prapriator Trustes Propriator Appoiniad Dy Managar {Ratired) Canlinuous

Dabble Malcolm  Pupll Trustes Student Elaction Studant Saplambar 2020

Chrisling Buckley  Siall Rep Staf Eleciad Role Taschar Till naat alacions [ May 2022
Hillary Carlay Mon-Yoling Secratary  Stalf Appoiniment Role EA to the Princapal Conlinuous

Accountant ;1 Paul Hartstange
MGS Business Manager

Middlaton Grange School Annual Reporl and Financlal Slalemania
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MIDDLETON GRANGE SCHOOL

Annual Report - For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Middleton Grange School

Statement of Responsibility

For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Board of Trustees accepts responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial statemaents
and the Judgements used In these financlal statements

The managamaent (including the principal and others as directed by the Board) acospts responsibility
for establishing and maintaining a system of intamal controls designed to provide reasonable
agsurance ns 1o the integrity and rellablility of the school's financlal reporting

It Is the opinion of the Board and management that the annual financial statements for the financlal yoar
onded 31 December 2019 fairly reflects the financial position and operations of the school

The Schoofs 2019 financlal statemants are authorised for issue by the Board,

Michael Smith Michael Vannoort I
Full Name of Boarfl Chalrperson Full Name of Principal
'!.{lfjll.};ll;itl.oi Board L‘v;;tp;mbh - o Slanatule olPrincipsl -z T
29-May-20 e 2T 20-May-20 - ST —
Date: ' Date
Middleton Grange School Annual Report and Financial Statements Page 1
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Middleton Grange School

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2018 2019 2018
Budget
MNotes Actual {Unauditad) Actual
$ | §
Rovenus
Gavernmant Grants 2 8,753,518 9 560,095 9,460 490
Locally Ralssd Funds 3 1,918,354 1,984,883 1,854 667
Ligo of Land and Bulldings Integrated 3,182,400 3,112,000 3,112,000
Intarast incama 118,481 138,182 143,271
Gain on Sale of Proparty, Plant and Equipmaant - - 2
International Siudents i 2. 080 604 2,087 335 2,860,808

Cithisr Revanum

17 662 44 7 16,856 458 1r470,128

Exponsos
Locally Ralsed Funds K| 609,724 A50, 048 617,628
Intemational Students 4 2,520, 384 1,634 652 2,305 8O0
Leaming Resources 5 5,204 958 8,017,372 8,963,141
Adminiatration 3] Bl BAT AL G55 38 457
Flnance 8,297 7.125 8,239
Praparly 7 4,122 488 i 128 128 4 65,183
Dapraciaton B 616,338 432,686 445 067
Loas an Disposal of Proparty, Plant and Eqgulpmant 13,180 - 5436
Logs on Uncollectabla Accounis Receivabla 5325 - {3, 776)
Amaortisation of Intanglble Assets 14 43,044 . 13,812
18,138,282 16,756,668 17,345 9848
Mot Surplus | {Deficit) for the year (478,845) 138,787 120,138
Uthar Comprahanaive Revanue and Expanses - -
Total Comprohensive Revenue and Expense for the Year {476 845) 130,787 120,138

The above Statament of Comprehansive Revenua and Expanse should be read
in canjunction with the accompanying notes which form parl of these financial statemaents,

Middleton Grange School Annual Report and Financial Statermants Page 2
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Middleton Grange School

Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Budgat
Actual
MNotes Actual (Unaudited) ua
2019 2019 2018
§ ] ]
Balance ot 1 January 2,860,350 2,024 587 2801 022
Tatal comprafens v revanue and axpansa for tha yaar (478,845) 134,787 120,138
Caplital Contribullans fram the Minkstry of Education
Contribution - Furnlture and Equipmant Grant 45412 42 500 38,289
Equity at 31 Dacambar 25 2418 826 2 200 874 2.B50 68
Ratained Eamings 2418 826 2,208,874 2,050,358
Ranarves - - -
Equity at 31 December 2410006 2208874 2,850,350

Tha above Statamant of Changas In Net Assats/Equity should ba read in conjunction
with the accompanying notad which form part of thase financial siatemants

Middieton Grange School Annual Report and Financial Statamants Page 3
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Middleton Grange School

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2019

2018 2018 2018
Budget
Notes Actual {Unauditad) Actual
$ ] §

Currant Assals

Caosh and Cash Equivalants ] 275 583 2,180, A8A 2,108 589
Accourts Recslvabls 10 827,235 584 720 626,587
GST Recalvable 170,483 165,200 160,883
Praspaymnts 50,431 58,500 66,305
Invanior s 11 133,578 126,000 121,361
Invastments 12 3,560,800 1,580,000 2,544,278

4,826, 800 4,678,308 5,629,068

Cirrant Liabilities
GST Payable . . .
Acoounts Payable 15 A83,022 1,018,500 077,842
Ravenus Recalved In Advanon 16 2,240,920 2,225,500 2215432
Prowviglon for Cyelical Malntenance 17 T4, 000 57,000 T4, 000
Flnance Loasa Liability - Currant Portion 18 188,864 198,500 218,840
Funds hakd in Trust 19 58,812 55,200 4, 506
Furds hald an bahalf of Learming Community Cluster 20 . - -
3,554 618 3,555, 100 3,580,420
Waorking Capital Surplus/(Deflcit) 1,272,201 1,122,808 2,048 648
Non-current Assets
Invaslmants 12 " - -
Proparty, Plant and Equipmant 13 1,764,138 1,734 519 1.391 505
Intangibla Assats 14 30,444 43,94

1,764,138 1,764, 963 1,435,530

Nomn=current Liabilities

Provislan for Cyclical Maintenance 17 431,808 452 197 418,187
Finance Lease Liability 18 185,685 184,500 215,631

617,503 GA0, 697 633,828
Met Assats 2418 926 2,206,874 2,850,358
Equity 25 2,418,926 2,208,874 2,850,359

The abave Stalemeant of Financlal Positlon should be read in conjunciion
with the accompanying notes which form par of these financial statamants.

Middleion Grange School Annual Report and Financial Statements
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Middleton Grange School

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2019 2018
Budget
Note Actual (Unaudited) Actual
4+ + §
Cash flows from Operating Activities
Governmaent Grants 2,500,226 2A57 382 2,403 834
Locally Ralsed Funds 1,076,254 1,906,443 1,748 465
Intemational Studants 2,709,315 1,977,335 2,427 069
Goods and Services Tax (net) (9,600) 16,300 67,340
Paymants to Employees (3,233,062) (2,844,601)  (2,850,269)
Paymonts to Suppliers (3,880, 560) (3,128,277) (3,784,893)
Cychionl Maintenance Payments In the year (43,389) (22,599) (22,599)
Intorest Pald (8,297) (7,125) (8,239)
Interest Raceived 130,108 147 162 144,362
Net cash from Operating Activities 148,096 580,020 206,100
Cash flows from Investing Activities
Prooseds from Sale of PPE (and Intanglbles) . (12,102) (434)
Purchase of PPE (and Intangibles) (664,552) (564,160) (336,312)
Purchase of Investments (1,025,330) 1,450,000 2,158,242
Proceeds from Sale of Investments . . .
Net cash from Investing Actlvities (1,680,881) 843,720 1,821,406
Cash flows from Financing Activities
Furniture and Equipment Grant 7154 4,200 38,200
Finance Lease Paymanis (260.681) (251,428) (265,334)
Funda Administerad on Behalf of Third Parties (35,604) (40,600) (16,905)
Net cash from Financing Activities (289,221) (287 828) (243,940)
Net Increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (1,831,006) 1,145 021 1,782,656
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the year 9 2,106,569 1,084,200 323913
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 275,563 2,230,121 2,106,569

The statement of cash flows records anly those cash flows directly within the control of the School, This means centrally
funded teachers' salaries and the use of land and buikdings grant and expense have been excluded.

The above Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes which form part of these
financial statements,,

Deloitte,
For
emitcasons
Middleton Grange School Annual Report and Financial Statements Page 5
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Middleton Grange School
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Critloal Judgamanie in applying accouniing policles
Managamani his sxaroiad ha follosdng oritical judgemants in apglying scoounling policlas

Clagaifaalion of lesgaes

Ddarmbning whather & laass 8 8 financs lsase or 5n oparsling lease requires (udgamaent a8 o whther the lsase iransfers
subatanially all tha faks and rewscds of cwnarmbip to the schs, Judgamant (8 requied on vanious sapacts that Incleda, but
e meal Bemibad bo, thas fale valus of the lssied sasat, the sconomic life of the lsased assel, whather or nol B Include renawal
ol in ths (e berm, and dalarmining an appropriate discount rme o caloulate the present value of the minimum (saee
paymants, Clasaification as n finance leass maeans tha sssal (& reoognisad in the stmamant of financial position as propary,
plant, and aqulpment, whesress far en oparating |ease no sech sesel B moognised

Regogniion af grants

Tha School reviaws (ha granta monlas recsived ot the end of sach repoding pariod and whatfes any redquing § pooyison o
caeryloramrd amosnts unapant, Ths Sohool belsves all grants recelved have bean sppropristely recognised as a lability i
raquirad, Govemmaent grants sre disclosed al note 2, when applicable

aj Ravanus Recognitlon

Government Granfts
Tha Bchool recalves funding fram tha Miniatry of Education. The following ane the main typas of funding thal ihe Schoal

acaEvan;

Cparational grants are recorded as revenus when tha School has tha dghta 1o the funding, which ia in the year that the
Ianeifing |8 racaivacd

Teachars salaries grants are reconded as revenos when the School haa tha rights to the funding in e salary parad ey
ralate to, Tha granis are not received in cash by the School and ane pald directly to eachers by the Minkstry of Education

Othar Grants

Other grants are racorded e revanua whan tha Schoal has e rights fo the funding, uniess there are unfulfillad conditions
atlachad o ihe grant, In which cese tha amount relating 1o the urfulfilled conditions |8 recognised &8 & labiity and released
b rivviniin @8 M conditions are fulfilled.

Granta for tha usa of land and bulldings are alse not recelvad In cash by the School as they equate to the desmad
expenaes for using the land and bulldings which ar cwned By the Propastor. Use of land and bullding grants ae
racordad aa income in the parod the school uses the land and bullding

Donations and Gifts
Donations and gilts are recorded as revenua whan thalr recaipt la formally acknowladgaed by the School,

Interest Revenue
Inberast Revenus samed on cash and cash eguivalants and imvestmaents is recorded as revenua in the period [§ bs eamed.

) Usa of Land and Buildings Expanse

Tha propery from which the Schaol operates I8 cwned by the Proprietor, Tha expanse is based on an assumied
markat rental yiald on tha land and builkdings as used for raling purposes, This (s a non-cash expanse that is offset by
a non-cash grant from tha Proprietor,

@) Operating Leasse Paymants
Payrmants misde under oparating leases are recognised in the Statement of Comprahensive Revenus and Expense on a
straight lina basis over tha larm ol he lase,

f) Finance Lease Paymanis
Finance leasa paymenis are apportionad batwean the finance charge and the reduction of the outatanding liability. The
finanea charge & allocatad 1o esch penod durng the lease term on an affactive inlerest basis.

Middletan Srange School Annual Report and Financial Statemanis
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Middlaton Grange School
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

@) Canh and Cosh Equivalenis

Caah and cash aguivalants Inchede cash on hand, bank balances, depcalts held af ol with banks, aned ol shert barm
highly Boguid irvasimants with originel maturifes of 80 days or las, snd bank overdrafis. Tha carmying smount of cash and
omih soulvslants regeasant falr value,

h) Ascounis Racoivable

Ehort-tarm racelvables sre recorded 81 tha smount des, lass sn allowsnce for cradit losses, The school applles the slmpifiad
expaated credil losa model of recogniaing lifellms expectad credit lossas for recalvablas, |n messurng expacted cradit
konmni, ahort-barm racalvablas hnve boan sssessad on o collsciive baals aa thay possass shared crads riak chamaotaristios
Thay have baan groupad besed on the deys past dus. Shol-tenm recalvables sre weitten offl whan thare is no resscnabls
axpacintion of recovery, Indicators thal there is no ressonabls axpectalion of ecovery nclude the dabitos baing In liguldatian

Prior Year Pollcy

Accolnts Recelvaliie represents tema that the School has sausd imaioes for or soermd for, bul has pof received paymant
for @t yaar end, Recaivabieg are ilfaly recorded ef fair value and subasguenily recordad al the amouni the Schoal
rmakaficaly axpacts to recaive, A recelvable is cansldered Wieolacialie where thare is objachive svidence ihe Schoo! will nal
b bl fo coeat all amounis due, The amount thal s uncollsctable (ihe provislen for uncollectibifty) is the differemcs
batwaar the amonl due & the prasen vilie of the amounts expectad fo be colecfed

i Inventorias

Invenioras are consumable llems hald for sale and comprise of cantesn supples and school uniforms, Thay are ststed st
this bprvar of coal and nael mallsable velue, Cost (s defarmined on a fired i, el oul beslis, Mal malissble value & the
aslimated salling prics In the ordinary course of actlviias leas the astimslad costs necassary o make tha sala, Any wite
dlewwns from coal o net realisable vabes & racarded a8 an expanss 0 the Statemant of Comprahenelve Revenus and Expanme
I tha padod of B wils down

I} Invastmants
Bank term deposits ae initislly meassurd sl fhe amount inveated. intereat s subseguently accrusd and sdded io the

imveatmant balanca. A loss siowancs for expectad cradit loases |8 recogniaad If the estimatad loss allowancs |s not irivial

Prior Year Pollcy

Banis ferm deposits for perads excesding 60 days are cleasifiod a8 inveatments and are initaly moasured & the smaunt
invested. inferosf is subseguenily scerued and added fo the investmen! balance, Affer initlal racogritkan bank harm deposifs
& measiied al amortiaed cost using the effectve inferesl method fess mpaimmraen,

K) Property, Plant and Equipmant
Land and bulldings ocwned by tha Propiater are axcluded from thase financial siatements. The Board's use of tha land and
bulldings an ‘oocupant’ w based on & propary sccupancy docemant,

Proparty, plant and equipmant ane reconded at comd o, in the case of donated assets, falr value al thi dale of recaigt, lnss
aocumulated depreciation and Impsirmant leasss. Cost or fair valus as tha cess may ba, Includes thass costs hal relste
diractly to benging the sasel lo the loemion whara it will ba used and making sure | |4 i e approprate condition for its
Intendad uan.

Propary, plant and agquipmant acquired with individuasl values undar §1,000 are not capitalisad, thay are recogniad as an
axpanss in tha Statamant of Comprehendlve Revanue and Expansa,

Gainn and lossas on disposals (Le, sold of given away) are determined by comparing e procesds rceived with the carrying
amounts (e, s ook valual. Tha gain or koes analng frem tha disposal of an lbem of proparty, plant and equipmant is
ragagnised i the Statemant of Compranendlve Revanue and Expanse, Tha school has recantly gone through an intensie
process of rmoonciling thesr phyaclal aMeels againat mcords hald. OF those not abla to be identified thay have been writhan off,
as showing within theaa Financlal Stalemants.

Daloitie.
P
e i FRcaticn
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Middleton Grange School

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Finance Loasos

A finance lonse transfery 1o the lessoe substantinlly 4l the risks and rewards incldantsl to ownership of an asset, whather or
nol tle bs eventually transferred. At thae start of the lease lerm, financs leases are recognined as assets and labides in the
statemant of inancial positlon s the lower of the fair value of the leasad aseat or the present value of the minimum lease
paymonta. The financa charge i charged to the surplus or deficit over the lease penod so as to produce a constant periodio
rate of Interest on the remaining balanoe of the liabllity. The amount recognisad as en assel (s depracinted over its uaaful life
If thare ls no rensonable cartainty whather the achool will obtain ownership st the end of the lease tarm, the asset is fully
depracitod over the shorter of the lease tarm and ds usedul e

Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment axcept for libeary resources nre depreciatod over their estimated usalul lives on o straight line

basie. Libeary resouroes are depreciated on a diminihing value basie. Depreciation of all assets s reportad in the Statement
of Comprahansive Ravenus and Expanse,

The estimated usalul lives of the nasots are;

Fumniture and sguipmaent 5«10 yoars

Information and communication technology 5+« 10 yoarn

Land Improvement 10 yoors

Motor vehicles 4 yoars

Library Books and Textbooks 8 yoars

Loeanad assets held under a Finance Lease 35 yoors

Libwary resouross 12.6% Diminishing value
1} Intangible Assots
Software costs

Computer software scquired by the School are capita¥sed on tha basls of the costs Incurred to aoquire and bring to use the
npocific software, Conts associsted with subsaquaent maintenance o licensng of softwire are recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Comprahansive Ravenus and Expense whan incurred,

Computer software kcances with individual values under $1,000 are not capitalised, thay are recognised as an axpense in the
Statament of Comprahansive Ravenue and Expense whan Incurred,

Computer software that the school! recelves from the Ministry of Education s normally acquired hrough & non-axchange
transaction and i not of & materal amount. I's falr value can be sssessed at time of acquisition If no other mathods lead o 8
foir value determination. Computer software purchased directly from suppliecs at market rates are considersd axchange
transactions and the falr value is the amount pald for the software,

The earrying value of software s amortised on a straight line basis over its useful ife. The useful ke of software s estimated
as throe years, The amortisation charge for each pariod and any impalrment loss (s recorded in the Siatement of
Comprohansive Revanue and Expense.

m) Impalrment of proparty, plant, and equipmant and Intanglble assets
Tha school doas not hold any cash generating sssets, Assals are considered cash ganernting whare theér primary objective
I8 10 generate & commercial raturn,

Non cash genoraling assols

Property, plant, and eguipment and intangible assets held at cost that have a finite useful ife are reviewed for impainment
whanaver avents or changaes in crcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not ba recoverable. An impairment loss
i rocognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount excesds (ts recoverabie service amount, The recoverable
sarvice amount | the higher of an asset’s fair value leas costs to sell and value in use

Value in use is datermined using an approach based on aither a depreciated replacemaent cost approach, restoration cost
spproach, o & service units approach. The most appropriate approach used to measure value in use depends on the nature
of the Impalrmant and avallability of information,

If an assel's carmying amount exceads |ts recoverable service amount, the assel is regarded as impaiced and the carrying
amount is written down to the recoverable amount. The total impairmaent loas |s recognised in the surplus or deficit,

The ravarsal of an Impakmant loss |8 recognised In the surplus or deficit, Deloitte.
m':-w
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Middleton Grange School
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

nj Accounts Paynble

Accounts Payable represants labilitles for goods and servicas provided to the School prior fo the end of thi fnsnol ye
which mre unpakd, Accournts Payable sre recorded 81 this amount of cash required jo sebile thoss Rabdifes, The smounts ar
unmascurad mnd mre usunlly pakd within 30 days of meognition,

o] Employes Entitlamants

Sharf-lorm amplopaa aniiliaments

Emplayen banefits that are dus to be sstthed within 12 mantha after tha and of the perod in which ths employes

rendars tha ralated serion sce maasured basod on accruad endidemania al ocwured rdes of pay,

Thisia Inchede aalares and weges accrued up o balance data, annual lasve aarmed io bul nol yat teken sl balancs date,

Lowtg-larm amplopes aniiifamonts

Erngoyan banafis thist are dus o b selllad Beyond 12 menths aftar the end of tha perlod n which the employes rendaer the
ralaled serica, such an long service leave and relirermant gratudios, heve been caloustad on an actuaral bass, Tha
calaulations ara banad on;

* likaly fullira anlitlaments acoruing 1o stalf, banad on years of servics, yaars to antltlemant, the |kelihood that stall will reach
tha paint of antillement, snd contreciual entitiemant informalion; and

* s prasant vabes of tha satmatad fulure cash Rowe

p) Revenue Recalved In Advance

Revanua recaivad in advance ralates to fees recaived from Intarmational Students, whare thers are unfulflllad obligationa for
thar Sehool io previde sarvices in the future, The fees arm ecordad s rmanue e the abligations ara fulilled and e b
aarnad

Tha School halde suflicknt funds o anabla tha miund of uneamaed feas in relabon to intermalionsl sludents, should the
Schoal ba wiabile o provide the serdoas to which thay relate,

q) Funds Hald in Trust
Funds ara hald in trust whiasre thay have been racetad By the Schoal for 8 specifiad purpase, of are balng held an bshall of
third parly and thaaa fransactions are not recorded in he Stalament of Revenue and Expanss. The School holds sufficlen
funds bo anabla the funds b ba used for thalr intended punpose ot any ima,

rh Bhared Funda

Shared Funda ace hald on bishal? of @ clustes of paricipaling schoals as agresd with tha Minisiry of Education. The cluster of
schoals oparata scilvitine outside of school control. These amaunis are nol recordad in the Statament of Revenus and
Expansa, Tha School holds sufficlient funds to anable thi funds to ba used for their intended purposs

&) Provislon for Cyclical Malntenance
Tha proparty fram which the achaal oparates s owned by the Propriator. Tha Boacd s responsible for maintsining the land,

building and other {acililes on the School site in & state of good order and repal,

Cyelical maintenance, which involvas painting the Interdor and extedsor af tha Schoal, makas up the moat slgnificant part of the
Board's rasponsbilities culside day-to-day malmtanance, Tha previsions for cyolical maintenance repeesants the abligations
tha Board has to the Proprietor and I8 based on the Board's tan year proparty plan (10YPP)

t} Financlal Asssts and Liabiitias

Tha School's nancial nasals comprise cash and cash eguivalants, accounls moahabla, and invesimenis, All of thaes
financlal assals, sxcapt for investmants that ane shaces, are categorised as oans and recafvables for scoounting purposes
In accordanca with financial reporting standards,

Tha School's finanalal Nsbillbes comprise accoums payable, and financs leass labiily, All of thase Gnancisd labilitios ar
categorised as “financial llabdilies mansured & amortisad cost” for accounting purposes in accordance with fnancial
reparing standards,

thh..
e i Ticaiins
Middinton Grange School Annweal Repart and Financial Statemants Page 10
In Your Light Shall We See Light  Psalm 36:9 2019 Annual Report Page 15

Character, Excellence, Service, for the Glory of God



Middleton Grange School |
Annual Report 2019 |

Middleton Grange School
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year endad 31 Decembar 2019

ul) Goods and Sarvices Tax (GST)
Thas nanainl slatsmanis hawe baan prepered on o G8T axdelusiva baale, wilh e axcaption of acosmis mosimblo snd

nogounts paymable wiich are atatad as GET nclushe

Tha il mmaunt ol GET pald 1o, or meslved fram, tha IRD, including thes QST ralating o Invaaling &nd financing aclivitios, &
cliaslflad a8 o nat oparating cash Row in e slatemants of oash fowvs

Commiimants and conbingancias ars disclossd axclushe of GET

W) Budgal Flguras
Tha budgal Ngures an axtrcted rom the School budget that wes approved by ths Board In Decembar 2018

w) Barvlaan racabved Inskind
Froem lirma o bme (ha School receiven services in-kind, ingluding tha iime of volunbean. The School has alacted nol 1o

racognias aardons mosled In Kind in the Stalamaent of Comprabanive Revenue and Expanis

Delaitie,
hhr;lgn..-
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2. Governmant Grants

Oparationnl Grants

Toachers' Salarios Grants

Rasource Teachars Leaming and Behaviour Geants
Othor Mok Grants

Other Governmant Arants

3. Locally Ralsed Funds

Local funds radnod within the School's community are made up of:

Revenuwe
Donations
Trading
Fundradaing
Othor Revenue

Expensos
Trading

Surplus/ (Defielt) for the year Localy raised funds

4. International Student Revanue and Expenses

Intarnational Student Roll

Revenue
Internationsl Student Faas

Expensos
Advortinng
Commissions
International Student Lavy
Employos Banafit - Salaries
Othor Expansos

Swplus/ (Doficit) for the yeer Infemational Students'

Micdiaton Grange School Annual Report and Financial Statemants

2019 2019 2018
Rudget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
b ) $
2,201,228 2180210 2.148 302
7,226,345 7108179 7,030,200
8124 12,000 11,843
220,148 191,118 22290
97,680 77,587 BB, 748
0,753,518 1), 566 005 9 459 490
2019 2010 2018
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ by s
J04,178 430 280 405,008
707,140 755,700 713,164
36,514 41,400 73,140
781,521 753478 842,265
1,019,354 1,689,863 1,854 667
069 724 050 049 017,628
669,724 060,049 617,628
1,248 630 1,330 814 1,237 030
2019 2010 2018
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
Number Numbaer Number
104 122 AL
2019 2019 2018
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ s $
2,688 664 2,067 338 2,860,668
4,950 81,3580 647,672
162,657 179,360 189,719
41,663 46,678 41,580
876,494 844,228 758,665
1,344,615 473,006 1,308 244
2.520,384 1,634 652 2,385 890
168,310 422 683 464 BO6
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f. Lanrning Rosourcas

10 2010 2014
Budgat
Actual {Unaudited) Actual
] ¥ E
Cunrioular 304 6T 453 883 351,832
Infarmmion and Coammunamion Teahnokogy B0, 7A1 1,887 a1, 52
Library Rasourcas A58 11,280 6,418
Ermployes Bonafils - SBslarian B.FFT 20 8470 542 LELLE L
Sindl Doveloprminn B, 346 o,000 127,184
0,204 088 BA17ATE 8963 141
i Administration
e 010 2018
Budgst
hctual (Unauditad) Aciual
] | $
Audlt Faa fl, 542 8,800 285
Board of Trualoas Foos 7,735 ¥ 0o T80
Board of Trualoas Expansas 32,048 FER. i T.262
Communantion 1,871 12,000 1231
Oparating Leass 18,840 20,303 7812
Othar 83,850 A8, 3448 103,813
Employes Banedits - Salanes 830,547 570,810 550,631
Inaurancs 16,200 18,378 17,814
Sarvica Prowdars, Contractors and Consullancy 130,224 121,620 123,278
B ¥ ] B2 ABT
7. Proparty
Fiigl] 019 a01a
Huiclgt
Agiual {Unawdited) Aetual
$ $ 5
Carataking and Claaning Conaumablos 28,3209 20,000 a7 fea
Canaultanay and Contract Sarvices 207114 221,000 206,831
Cyolical Malntenancs Provison 57,000 57,000 74,000
Grounda 34,873 34,500 N 08
Huaal, Light and YWates 222,728 253,700 232837
Rapalrs and Malnbanancs Tdad, FTE 173,825 181,089
Una of Land ard Bulldinga 3,182 400 3,112,000 3,112,000
Sacurily 14,042 18,300 11,383
Employan Banofits - Salarias 211,11 235,100 208,216
4,122 2488 4,1 25!125 4, 065, 163

Tha wse of land and bulldings Ngura reprassnta B% of the school's fotal proparty value. This is used as a ‘proxy’ for the Markat
rantal of tha proparly, Proparty vahses ars aatablished as part of the nation-wide revaluation axarciss thal is conducted avery 30
Juna far thia Minisiry of Educalion’s yaar-and raporting purposas.
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8, Dopreciation

Furmniture and Equiprment

Infoemation and Communication Tachnology
Land Inprovemaents

Motor Vehiclan

Toxtbooks

Loasad Ansols

9. Cash and Cash Equivalants

Canh on Hand

Bank Currant Acoount
Bank Cad Account
Short-tarm Bank Deposits

Cash and cash aquivalents for Canh Flow Staterment

The carrying value of short-tarm depoalts with matunty dates of 80 days or leas approximates thelr falr value

10. Accounts Recelvable

Recalvablos

Recelvablas from tha Ministry of Education
Allowanocs for credit! lossens

Intarost Racelvable

Banking Staffing Underuse

Toacher Salarles Grant Reostvable

Rocalvables from Exchange Transactions
Racaivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

11, Inventories

School Uniforms
Canteen

2010 2010 2018
Budget
Aatual (Unaudited) Actusl
s $ s
126,502 06,600 02,700
93,529 72,740 6H6,121
3,004 . .
10,3930 7,000 7,100
24,865 21,660 14,240
250,088 232,668 205,778
516 338 432 06 445 087
2019 2019 2018
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
s $ $
888 aan 88
64,648 65,000 LFR
210,027 265,000 206,679
1,850,000 1,736,085
75 1
2019 2019 2018
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actunl
s $ $
06,554 78,500 128,587
24,226 16,800 5,208
(B,548) (6,580) (3,223)
10,1561 22,000 30,779
505,853 485,000 465126
027,235 50 720 626,567
97157 83,920 156,143
530,078 500,800 470424
027.235 504 720 m,gv
2019 2019 2018
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ ) s
133,207 128,500 120,776
m 500 585

133,578 126,000 121,381
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12, Investmants

The School's mvestmant activities are classdfiod an follows:

2019 2019 2018
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual

Curront Assol ) s $

Short-tarm Bank Deponits 3,660,600 1,580,000 2,544 279
Non-gurrent Asnat

Long-term Bank Deposits

Total Investments 3,600,600 1 550,000 2,544 279
The carrying value of ahort-term doposits with maturty dates of B0 days or moare approximatos thelr falr value
13, Property, Plant and Equipment

Opaning
Balance (NAY)  Additlons Disposnla Impairment  Depreciation  Total (NBY)
2010 $ $ 4 s ] s
Fumiture, Prant and Equipment 501,542 325,504 (,292) (125,502) 783,341
Information and Communication 218 543 240012 (4,003) (02,529) 300,933
Land Improvemants 2000 23,601 . (3,034) 49,458
Motor Vahldes 19477 51140 (10,330) 60,208
Library Resources 130,803 60,1080 (24,855) 100,218
Loasod Assots 432,219 200,760 - (250 088) 373,900
Balance at 31 Decombar 2010 L391.508 £02,068 (13,148 Sleae) 1764138
Cost or Accumulated  Net Book
Valuation  Depreciation Value
2019 s $ $
Fumiture, Plant and Equipmant 1,204,704 (451 .453) 753,341
Information and Communioation 744,006 (384,062) 360,933
Land Improvemaents 52,492 (3,034) 49,458
Motor Vehicien 117516 (57,228) 60,200
Library Resources 502,841 (336,623) 166,218
Leased Assols 1,100,808 (735,9085) 373,900
Balance at 31 Decamber 2019 732, {1,868 306) 1,7t
Opening
Balance (NBV)  Addions Disposals Impairmant  Depreciation  Total (NBV)
2010 $ s s 13 s $
Furniture, Plant and equipment 472 586 187,083 (5,436) (92,700) 561,542
Information and Communication
Technology 206721 78,053 (66,131) 218,543
Land improvamonts 28,031 . 20,931
Molor Vehsclon 26,586 - (7,108) 10477
Library Rosourcas 103,358 A1L773 (14,249) 130,883
Loased Assols A20,081 68,046 (265,778) 432,219
Balance at 31 Dacember 2018 1,437,303 405 606 (5,438) {445 087 1,361,505
Outotie
ey
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Coat or ecumulated Mat Book
Valuation  Dapreciation Valua
]

2018 5 |
Furnfiure, Plsst snd sgulpmant 821,671 { B0 A 2 584,542
Infarmation and Communleation Tachnolagy 540, f 2 {231, M) 218, 849
Land Improvemants 28,631 . 28,91
Moator Yahiclas Af8.375 {40, BDA ) 10,477
Taxihooks 443 052 {311, 7a48) 130,884
Lanand Ansale Q08,037 {47TH,819) 432,218
Balance at 31 Docambar 2000 P RELL] |:| Har aia ||5“|l“
14, Intanglble Asaata
Tha Gehaal's Intangitis Ausels ara mada up of an Equitabla Laasshold Interost reauling fram Classrom ralocalions
and axtansons

Euitatie

Laasahald Total

Intareat §

Coat
Balance at 1 January 20148 6o, 102 . 9,182
Atdlithang . . "
Dinponaka R - - -
Balanos ol 31 Docamber 2018/1 January 2019 06,102 & 0,102
Addelibkons . . .
Diaponals . . .
Balarca ol 31 Decambar 2010 9,102 . 0,102
Acaumulatad Amartisation and Impalrmant losses
Balanca al 1 January 20108 86,248 55,248
Amariination axpenms - . .
Dlag=anln .
Imipairmant lnssng - -
Balance at 31 Decamber 201801 January 2018 66,248 55,248
Amoartmalion axpansa . .
Dinpanals . .
I pairrimni ionses __ 43,044 - A3 fad
Balanca al 31 Decambar 2010 0,102 . (TR F]
Garrging amounts
Al 1 January 2018 43,044 - A3 B
Al 31 Decarmbers 20187 1 January 2018 43,844 . A3 B
AL31 Docamber 2018 : - :

This Equitabla Leasahold iniarast resullad from Classroom ralocations, which have aubsaquantly baan removed from sie during
thia yaar and now maadacd 1o be willan off,

Dwloltte,
enbeaton
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16, Accounts Payabila

2010 e 2018
Budgat
Actual {Unaudited) Actunl
$ $ L]
Dparming Craditon 1540, 688 233,500 200,370
Acorunks 1,082 78,500 60,881
Bmnking Staffing Cvaruaa 10,073 - -
Emplayan Entdlamants - Salariss B, Gl a5, D00 600,562
Emplayaa Entdlamants - Laava Accrual 24 565 25,500 25,063
nugp_::* 1,018, 500 iy Bl
Paymbies for Exchangs Transaailons fsA 45T ekl DN 81 BB
Paynlilea for Man-axahangs Transaatons - Taxes Payables (FAYE and Fatos) 24 BAS 28,500 25,083
ILENEFF 1,019,500 Brrede
Tha carrying walia of payables approsdmatas thalr falr veles
168, Havenug Recelved In Advancs
2010 2010 2018
Bl gt
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ ¥ 3
Intmrnmional Sludant Faas 2,138 a4 2,120,000 2,118,383
Cithar 110,838 105,500 a7 06a
_z&w,i:u 2,420 00 2165433
17, Provision for Cyclical Malntenanca
gl ] 018 Figl ]
Budgat
Aciual {Unaudited) Aciual
$ § $
Prevision ol tha Starl of the Year 462,187 463,197 440, M8
Inaraanad (decronna) o ha Provialon During the e 57,000 57,000 4,000
Lisn of the Proviskan Durlng the ¥eaar {43, 280 (22, BEd)
Provialon ol tha End of tha Year 505, BOA B48 167 482 167
S
Cyelleal Malmanance = Curren 74,000 57,000 74,000
Cyellcal Malntenanca - Term 431,808 482,107 418,187
~— BOGBOB Edf, 167 LR

18. Financa Loasa Llabllity

Tha Schaal has antered inbe & numbar of inance kease agreamanta for computers and othar ICT squipment. Mirsmum laass

paymants payaile:
2010 2019 2018
Budget
Actual {Unaudited) Actiial
$ $ |
Mo Later than Ona Yaar 148,002 168,500 168,850
Latar than One Yaar and no Later than Flva Years 261 481 188,500 164,715
\
06,873 e Lo - 1 - /Hﬂn loltte,

Middiaton Grange Schoal Annual Repor and Financial Statamants

F
U —

Page 17

In Your Light Shall We See Light

Psalm 36:9

2019 Annual Report Page 22

Character, Excellence, Service, for the Glory of God



Middleton Grange School |
Annual Report 2019 |

=
N U T I

10, Fumds hald in Trimt

2019 2019 FLAL ]
Aciual Busdgat Actual
§ § ]
Funda Hadd In Truat an Behall of Third Parties - Curreni LU WL A5,200 £, 800
LLNH] B8 a0 fid i

—_———— e e

Thana funds ara hald whara tha school in agant for raprasantaiive amounts and therafore thass are nat included in the Stabemant
of Comprahansive Revanun and Expansa. The iypas of ihass funds ara for auch things os varous 2020 Sudent ovarses's inps
plum thid 2020 Studant funds ralatad 1o camps, tripe and axii curculsr scihities for fulure penods,

20, Funds Hald on Bahalf of Laarning Community Clustar

Middlaton Geanga Schaal wan the leed achool which hald funda on bahall of ths Leaming Clustar, a group of achools fundad by
tha Ministry of Educetion to share professsonal developmant for 8 number of projocta

2018 2010 FLAT
Actual Bluidget Actual
5 $ §

Funds Hald at Baginning af the Yaar . : aan
Funds Recalvad from Cluater Membars . . .
Funds Hecalvad fram kMo . . .
Funds Spant an Bakall af e Clustar . . ]
Funds Hald s Year End . . =

M. Ralatad Party Tranaactlona

The Sehool 1a o controlled antity of the Crown, and tha Crown peovides tha major sourca of revanus bo the school. The schoal
antara ino iransactione with othar entilas also controllad by ths Crown, auch s govarmmen dapartmants, stEba-ownad
anterprisas and alhae Crown entities. Transactions with thases antitlas ar not disclosad as they oocur on tarms and conditions no
miare ar iean favourabis than thosa that 1t is ressonable 1o axpect the school would heve adopded If doaling with that entity at arm’s
langth

Refated party disclosures have not baan made for tranaactiona with relmed parties that are within 8 normal supples or
chantiracipsant ralatisnahip on terme and condition no more or kel fvoursble than thosa that | s reasonabla 1o axpect the achool
wiakld have adopbed In dealing with the party at arm's langth in the sama circumstancas, Furthar, iransactions with othar
povarmiment agencies (for example, Governmant deparimaents and Crown entitias) ar nol disclosad aa related party ranasctiong
whan thay s conslstant with the normal oparating arangamants balwaan govarnment agances and undartakan on tha normal
tarrmia and conditions for such iransactions.

Tha Praprialor of e School (Chrstian Schools Trual) 8 a ralabed pary of the Board bacause the propriator appalnts
repraaantativan 1o tha Board, giving the proprator aignificant influance ovar the Board. Any services o contributions bstwean tha
Baard and Propristar have boen disclosad appropriataly, If the propriatar collects fund on bahalf of the schoal (or vios veran) the
amounls ara desclosed,

Tha Prapristor provides land and bulkdings fres of charga for use by the Board as notad in Nota 7. The satimated valua of this usa
during the current penod I8 Included in the Statemant of Comprehanahe Revanua and Expansa s “Usa of land snd bulldings

Dalaitte.
iarapion
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22, Ramunoratlon

Kay managamani peracnnal compensaiion
iy manngaman parscnnal of the Sohool include all trustess of the Boand, Principal, Associate Principals, Aciing Principal and

varlous Handas of Depamants.

LA e
Actunl Al
| ]

Board Mambars
Ramurarabicn 7,738 7480
Full-timm aquilvalant marmbons 0.87 .48
Laaderahip Team
Ramunarabion T84 038 Adf 505
Full-tima aquilvalan mambens T T
Total key managamant parsonnal remunenaiion N A5 DaB
Tobal full-lima aqulvalant paraannsl ! &7 740

Tha full tima squisakant for Bossd membars hia Baaen detarmnad based on attandanca s Board maatings, Comm|tiae mastings
and for athar obligations of the Board, such aa atand downs snd susponsions, plus the astimated iime for Board mambers o

prepare for maatngs,
Principal
Tha Lots valua of rarmunanation psd or payabila 1o the Prinopal was in tha following banda:
2019 e
Betiuial Actual
Balarias and Cthar Bhort-tarm Employas Banallis: H000 $000
Salary and Olhar Paymanis
Frincipal 1 2030 210-220
Principal 2 10-20 .
Principal 3 A080
Banefits and Cihar Emohemanis:
Principal 1 05 -5
Principal 3 ! 0-5 -5
Oithar Emplaypaes
Tha numbar of siher amployaas with ramunaration graater than $100,000 was in the following bands
Remunaration FLlL 018
000 FTE Mumber FTE Mumbsar
100110 4 1
110120 1 0
120130 1 1
] i

The dincloaure for ‘Othar Employess’ does not include ramuneration of he Principal
23, Continganclaa

Thsra ara na cantingant lisbilitles (axcapt as nolad below) and no contingan! ssaeis s &l 31 Decembaer 2019 [Contingant
labllitsas and assals al 31 Decambar 2008; nil)

Holldays Act Complianca - achools payroll
Tha Minisiry of Education parforma payroll processing and paymants on bahsif of school boards of truatess, through payrol
sarion providar Edueation Payrall Limitad,

The Minksiry has commencad a review af the achopks sectar payroll 1o ansura complianca with iha Holidays Act 3003, Tha initlal
phasa of this raview has idantifed arass of non-compliance. Tha Minlsiry has recognised an estimaied provision based an the
analyals of sampla date, which may nat ba whally rapragantathe of tha total datesat for Teachar and Support Stafl Entitlemaents. A
mara secirate astimats will ba possibla aler furthar analyala of non-compllance has baan complatod, and his work @ angaing.
Final calculations and polantial impact en any specific ndiddual will nat ba kKpown untl furhar detalled analysis has baen
complatad

To tha extant that any oblgabion cannat reasanably be quantifed at 31 Decembar 2010, & cortingant llability for tha school may Deloitte,

gt Idnlrllrli:nm
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24, Commitments
() Copital Commitmants
As at 31 Dacombar 2019 the [Soard has not entered Into contract agreamaents for capital works.

(Capital commitments st 31 December 2018; nil)

25, Managing Capital

Tha Hchool's capital Is Its aquity and comprises capital contributions fram the Ministry of Education for praperty, plant and
oquipment and accumulatod asurpluses and deficits. The School does not actively manage ceptal but attampts to enaure that
ncoma exceods spanding In mont years, Although daficits can arlse as plannad In particular yoars, they are offset by planned
surpluses In previous years or ansuing yosms

20, Financlal Instrumants

Tha carrying amount of financial assets and labilities in asch of the financial Instrumaent catagories are an follows:

Financlal assets moasured at amortised cost (2018: Loans and recelvables)

20190 2019 2018
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
s 5 $

Canh and Cash Equivalents 275,563 2,180 888 2,100,509
Rocalvablos 627,235 504,720 026,567
Invasimants - Tarm Deposits 3,660 600 1,550,000 2544279
Total Financlal assats measured at amortined cost 4472407 4,325,608 41418
Financial llabllities measured st amortised cost

Paynbles 058 457 204,000 051,640
Finance Lesses 74 550 347,000 434
Total Financis Linbitties Measwured ot Amortsed Coal 1333078 T 387 000 T3S T2

27. Evants After Balance Date

On Mareh 11, 2020, the Workd Health Organisation declared the outbreak of COVID-19 (a novel Coronavirus) a pandemic. Two
woaks |ater, on 26 March, New Zosland incroasad s’ COVID-10 alart leved Lo level 4 and a nationwide lockdawn commanced. As
part of this lockdown all schooks were closed. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is a lavel of
uncartainty around the duration of the closures,

Al the date of lssuing the financial stataments, the school has baen able lo absorh some of the impact from the nationwide
lockdown as it was docidad 1o start the annual Eastar School holidays eary, In the perdods the achool s apan for tultion, the
nchoot han switched to alternative mathods of delivering the curriculum, 5o studaents can learm remotely.

Al this tima the full financlal impact of the COVID-10 pandemic is not able to be datermined. The school will continue 1o recaive
funding from the Ministry of Education, aven while closed. Howaver, aconomic uncertainties have arisen which are likedy to
negativaly alfoct the operations and services of tha school. Wa describe bolow the possibie affects on the school that we have
idantfiod, rasulting from the COVID-18 pandemic:

*Aroduction in locally raisad funds revenue because the school's lack of ability to undertake fund ralsing avents in the community.
*Anticipated, yat unknown raduction In recedpt of school donation contributions from parants.

*Anticipated, yot unknown raduction In revenue from student activity feas

*Confirmed cancellation of all plannad 2020 International Collega’s short-term trips will result in loas of subsequent budgated
Incomae,

*Likely raduced Intemational College student numbars for the remaindaer of 2020 due to the closing of the bordaers. Currently
axpocting approx, 19FTE fewer Intemational students for the ramainder of 2020,

*Conoom wih the possible effect on 2021 Intarnational Student numbars, This will depend entirely on government initiatives with
opening the Naw Zealand borders 0 the international students bafore the start of 2021 academic schaol year commaencing.

A roduction In revenue with hirng of the school's various venue facities.

A roduction In budgated Income with the schools trading activities,

Middlaton Grange School Annual Report and Financlal Statorments
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Bacauss af tha malters noted abova, tha schaoal s anbclpaling sxgariancing a conaidarable reducion n axpacisd revenua,
particulmdy from [t Intemational Colage eparmlions. The Schools Finanos Commillas ana prasenily undartaking an ungent revien
al all ks oparations plus atafling with @ Wew lo reducing axpanins b Iessaen SuUch an Impadl o0 & anbopated detenaoratng
hudgetad dafall posiion, Thoss maasuras include, bt ans nol lmibad o s Pollowing

Raduced apanding or a freaze on the 2020 Professional Laarming and Davesopmant Budgal

sPaduced axpanditun on aurieulem budgais,

sRindunnd axparditung on school photooopying.

«Taaching niafl covering for day rebaf as oppossd to gaiting In exiarnal mllevers,

Ml raplacing @ minkian Mase ke tha schoal,

‘Raducad apanding an Inlamational sudent marketing, sdvertising, staffing and professional devalopmant
Raduction 0 lbrary e pendibenes

sRaduction In aapial aspandiiurs and malilanance,

sRaduction In 1CT auppor

sHaduction |/ dissrallonary spending,

sRa-allacation of alafMng o miligete beses

sMan reglacamant of Naad leim alall of slalf on ahorl e ooniracts

‘Raduciion In ataffing for 2021 If Cavid-18 caniinues 1o impect aur border and rastricta entry inta N2 for Intarmational students

Thae Minlstry af Cducation has providad the schoad with a latter of suppart to ansurs It can meat 15 obligations as they fall dus

20, Adeption of PRE IFRE § Flnansial Instiromaents

in sceordanca with tha tranaltienal provisions of PEE IFRS 8, the schoal has eleciod not to restats the Information for previous
yiann 10 comply with PRE |FRS B Adjustmants arsing from the adoption of PRE IFRS 8 are recognised in opaning aquity at 1
January 2010, Accounting policlan have besn updsiad 1o comply with FEE [FRS f. The main updatos ara:

« Moln 10 Racalvablas: Thia pollcy has been updated o rafacl thal ha npalfmant of sha-laim racaléablas |8 now dabanmined by
applyng an axpacied cradll loss maodal

* Made 12 Invasimants:

Tarm dapoalis; This polay has boen updaiad o axgplain (hal & loas allowance for axpected cradil loases |8 moognised anly I tha
aalimalad oan alawanaon |8 nal idval

Lipan trensiion 1o PRE IFRSS thare ware no medarisl ad|ustmants o (hese financial slabsmanis
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Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE READERS OF MIDDLETON GRANGE SCHOOL'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Middleton Grange School (the School). The Auditor-General has
appointed me, Nicole Dring using the staff and resources of Deloitte Limited, to carry out the audit of the
financial statements of the School on his behalf.

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of the School on pages 2 to 21, that comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense,
statement of changes In net assets/equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, and
the notes to the financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory Information.
In our opinion the financial statements of the School.
present fairly, In all material respects:
its financial position as at 31 December 2018, and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year than ended. and

~ comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with Public Sector -
Public Benefit Entity Standards, Reduced Disclosure Regime

Qur audit was completed on 20 May 2020, This is the date at which cur oplinion is expressed

! The basis for our opinion is explained below, In addition, we outliine the responsidlities of the Board of
Trustees and our responsibilities relating to the financial statements, we commant on other information, and
we explain cur independence.

Basis for our opinion

Wae carmed out our audit In accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, which incorporate
the Professional and Ethical Standards and the Intemational Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) issued
by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibdities under those standards
are further described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report.

Wae have fulfllled our responsiblliittes in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinien

Emphasis of Matter - COVID-19

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the disclosures in note 27 on page 20 which outiine the
possible effecis of the Alert Level 4 lockdown as a result of the COVID-18 pandemic

Responsibilities of the Board of Trustees for the financial statements

The Board of Trustees |s responsible on behalf of the School for preparing financial statements that are
fairty presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. The Board of
Trustees is responsible for such intemal control as it determines is necessary to enable it to prepare financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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@ Middiotan Grange School

In preparing the financial statements, the Bowd of Trustees |s responsible on behalf of the School for
nsgesning the School's abiity to continue as a going concarn, The Board of Trustees |s also responsibie for
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting,
unless thare Is an intention to close or merge the School, or there it no realistic alternative but to do so

The Board of Trustees' responaibllities anse from the Education Act 1080,
Rosponsibilition of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole, are
froe from material misstatomant, whether due to fraud or arror, and Lo issue an auditor's repart that includes
our opinion

Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carmed out In
ncoordance with the Audtor-General's Auditing Standards will always detect a material miastatement whaen
It exiats, Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise from fraud or
orror. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be
oxpected to Influence the decisions of readers taken on the basis of these financial statements

For the budget information reported in the financial statements, our procedures were limited to checking
that the infarmation agreed to the School's approved budget.

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
Judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, Also

- We identify and assess the risks of material misstatemaont of the financial statements, whether due

| to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that s sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basés for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal
control

We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School's intamal control.

- We avaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
ostimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Trustees

We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the
Board of Trustees and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the School's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a materlal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
In our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinlon. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the School
o coase (o continue as a going concem,

We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achiaves falr presentation.

- We assess the risk of material misstaterment arising from the Novopay payroll aystem, which may
still contain errors. As a result, we carried out procedures to minimise the risk of material errors
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arining from the system that, In our judgemant, would likely influence readers’ averall undarstanding
of tha financial statermants,

Wa communicate with the Board of Trustess regarding, among ather maiters, the planned scope and Bming
af the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiancies in intemal controd that wa
identfy during cur audit.

Our responsibilities arisas fraom the Public Audit Act 2001
Other Information

Tha Board of Trustees is responsible for the ather infarmation. The ather information does not include the
financlal stataments, and ouwr suditor's repart theraan,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and wa do nol express any
form of avdit opinion or assurance conclusion tharaon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our regponeiblity is to read tha other informaton, In
doing 8o, we conaider whether the other information is materially inconsistant with the financial statements
or our knowladge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our
worl, wa concluda thal thara (s a materal misslalemant of this other information, wa areé reguired to report
that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard,

Indepandance

Wa are independent of the School in accordance with the independence requiremants of the Auditor-
Ganeral's Audiling Standards, which incorporate the Independence requirements of Professional and
Ethical Standard 1 {Revised). Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners lssued by the New Zealand
Audrting and Assurance Standards Board.

Qithar tham the audit, we have no relationghip with or interests in the School,

r?_iaﬁ'
=

Micole Dring
Delaitta Lirmded
On behalf of the Auditor-Genaral

Christchurch, Mew fealand
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Property Annual Report 2019

A YEAR IN SUMMARY
10-Year Property Plan (10YPP) Update

B Block Relocatable buildings

After much planning and, with the removal of the existing B Block buildings, the 5 buildings purchased
from UC arrived in early January 2019. Then followed extensive work to re-join and make good the
buildings fit for purpose. Lighting was replaced with LED units, Autex pinboard was added to the rooms
and substantial decking was added to provide access and outdoor areas. These buildings have replaced our
older B Block Pre-fab buildings with the same number of classrooms (7) plus additional toilets and our new
Centre of Learning, Development & Influence.

It is fair to say that this project has taken longer and cost more than anticipated and I would like to
acknowledge staff for their patience while the required work was carried out. It is fair to say the end result
has been worth the effort and the buildings will be there for many years to come.

Due to the size, complexity and cost of this project, no other major upgrade work was planned for the
year.

Primary School Cycle Track.

Rod Thompson along with a team of supporters has created an amazing cycle track along with an activities
track running down the middle. There was amazing and generous support from the local community for
this with the end result being much more than was ever anticipated.

SUMMARY
We are blessed with a site that has many trees and natural beauty. A credit to those who had the original
vision to create this school.

I would like to acknowledge the work of the Property/Health & Safety Committee which is made up of both
School and Proprietor representatives. Both entities work well together for the common purpose, to
maintain modern, fit for purpose, well equipped buildings and grounds to enable our pupils to have an
appropriate environment to learn and develop as well as appropriate facilities for staff and visitors. I would
also like to acknowledge the Maintenance Team; Nick Braithwaite, Steve Wright and Joy Kochakkan and all
the work they do around the site to ensure it is well maintained.

Kevin Wakeham
Property Manager
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Primary School Annual Report 2019

Percentage of students who are at or above the expected curriculum level in years 1- 6

All students at Middleton
Grange Primary School

Pasifika at Middleton
Grange Primary School (8)

Maori at Middleton Grange
Primary School (19)

2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
Reading 87% 88% 86% 84% 100% 77% 75% 75% 75%
Writing 86.5% 83% 81% 84% 90% 82% 87.5% 66% 58%
Maths 75%* 88% 85% 69%* 85% 71% 75% 58% 50%

Comments: 2018 was the final year where achievement targets were used to try and improve National
Standards results, so there is no achievement target commentary in this report due to National Standards
no longer being used. In the Primary School each teacher carries out a thorough review of their class early
in term 1. Where children are identified as ‘at risk’, specific targets/goals are set to assist them in their
learning and to ensure that they make the best possible progress. These Class Reviews are updated mid-
year to ensure that goals are being met. The aim with Maori and Pasifika students is to see them
progressing at the same rate as all other students if at all possible.

The results above are generally pleasing. We expect minor variations from year to year as the abilities
within each year-group will vary. Regarding Maths 2019 *(All Students & Maori Students), we would have
expected results of 85% or more. This lower result came about because the Maths programme in year 2
was too difficult. We have to benchmark PR1ME Maths in relation to the NZ Curriculum and the
benchmarked levels were too high. This has now been fixed and we expect to see the data return to an
average of about 85% in 2020.

2019 Te Kohango Ako, The Primary Learning Centre: This section written by Susan Meredith, SENCO

The Primary Leaning Centre is used to support pupils who are at-risk in their cognitive, emotional,
behavioural and/or social development.

2019 was another busy period for the Primary Learning Centre (PLC). By the end of the year we had seven
staff (6 staff working part-time) supporting pupils and their teachers within the 13 classrooms in the
Primary School as well as providing more intensive support to 93 pupils.

Whilst we still focus on academic learning needs within Reading, Writing and Mathematics, there has been
a growing diversity in our pupils particularly in relation to social and emotional needs. This has resulted in a
re-directing of some of our resources so we can provide greater help in this area. The most immediate
impact has been for myself as SENCO providing support to pupils with self-regulation difficulties, the
teachers that work with them and the parents that care for them. I ran a series of lessons for the Year 2 to
Year 6 cohorts presenting the language and tools to help children recognise when they are becoming less
regulated, what to do to manage their feelings and how to get themselves to a healthy place in different
contexts and within their relationships. Both teachers and pupils found this a very helpful series, and it
provided the springboard for on-going conversations and practical applications in the classroom and
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playground. My expertise in this area is a direct result of participating in Professional Development in the
previous two years, so I would like to thank the Board of Trustees for continuing to allocate funds for our
on-going development. This is essential so we can offer the most up-to-date information and care to our
learning community.

We requested support from the School Counselling team for four pupils in 2019, in addition to the two
pupils already being supported due to concerns for their well-being. This is an essential resource for at-risk
Primary pupils, particularly as they transition to Middle School.

Below is a description of the other support we have provided in 2019.
Years 1 and 2:

As well as providing essential support in classroom programmes during Reading and Writing, more targeted
support has been given to individuals and groups for Reading Recovery (9 pupils) fine motor (5 pupils) and
handwriting (3 classes), phonological awareness (3 pupils), writing (1 pupil), reading (2 pupils), speech and
language (3) and numeracy development (1 pupil).

Here is some specific data on two of the interventions we offered in 2019.

Reading Recovery

Mrs Linda Bucknell has continued to provide quality literacy support for children making the slowest
progress in literacy learning after one year at school. Pupils who have received Reading Recovery continue
to be monitored for three years beyond their discontinuation. The data collected in the monitoring
provides helpful information for conversations between the PLC and classroom teachers.

In total we have had five pupils successfully discontinued from Reading Recovery (including two pupils
carried over from 2018), two pupils referred to other Ministry of Education agencies and two pupils who
will be carried over to 2020. The two carry-over pupils for 2020 are at a level which suggests they will
discontinue successfully during Term 1.

2019 Reading Recovery results:

Child | Gender | Language Weeks in Entry Exit Entry Exit Entry Exit
other Programme Level | Reading BURT BURT | Writing | Writing
than Level Reading | Reading | Vocab | Vocab

English Score Score Score Score
A Male Yes 23 7 18 20 30 21 67
B Female No 23 8 18 17 29 24 50
C Male No 24 7 18 15 28 10 54
D Male No 8 1 2 1 4 2 8
Referred to
RTLB
E Male Yes 23 5 19 11 32 16 69
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Child | Gender | Language Weeks in Entry Exit Entry Exit Entry Exit
other Programme Level | Reading BURT BURT | Writing | Writing
than Level Reading | Reading | Vocab | Vocab
English Score Score Score Score

F Female No 27 1 10 9 18 15 36

Referred to
RTLit

G Male No 20 10 21 21 23 27 54

H Female Yes (stillin 3 - 13 - 26

intervention)

| Female No (stillin 7 - 23 - 32

intervention)

Handwriting support

As mentioned last year current research suggests that until Year 4 the motor planning involved in
handwriting is essential for developing important neural pathways. We also know that early intervention is
important to ensure incorrect habits are not practiced and reinforced. Correct letter formation aids in the
ease of writing and can affect pupil’s attitude towards writing and experiences of success.

Based on these ideas, we assess every pupil in Years 1 and 2 in relation to the formation of all 26 letters
and numbers 1-9. Children who have incorrect letter formation and pencil grips are provided with
individualized home handwriting packs, and those with a significant number of errors are provided with
individual support in the classroom, in addition to the handwriting lessons provided by their teachers. This
three-pronged model — classroom, home and individual help has proven effective in creating change.

At the beginning of each year the progress of the previous year’s 5-year old’s are assessed to monitor
progress made, and the data collected demonstrates that significant change has occurred. Of 21 children
who were provided with individualized packs and support, 17 had a reduction in errors of between 50 to
100%, two had a reduction in errors of between 38-43% and only 2 had a reduction of less than 20%.

Years 3 and 4

As well as providing essential support in classroom programmes during Reading, Writing and Mathematics,
more targeted support has been given to individuals and groups for literacy using a software programme
(16), reading (3) numeracy (2), writing (3), and social skills (5).

We had two new Year 4 pupils who required significant teacher aide support because of the levels they
were working at. One pupil was externally funded for additional support but the other was not.

Here is some more specific information on one of the new interventions we offered in 2019.
Social Skills

This year we trialed a social skills group to help support a group of Year 3 pupils who struggled in their
social interactions. The programme was based on ‘Socially Speaking’ by Alison Schroeder, a New Zealand
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Speech and Language Therapist. The carefully structured programme provided opportunity for the at-risk
pupils alongside a group of socially adept peers, to engage in practical experiences that focused on
developing their listening skills and expressive language abilities.

Activities included direct teaching and role play of conversation skills (making eye contact, keeping still and
looking interested, taking turns and joining in conversations) and friendship elements (what is a friend,
how to make friends, how to keep friends). Explicit teaching of these skills and an opportunity to practice is
very important for children who struggle with the social skills that come more naturally for others.

Both groups of pupils participated fully in the programme and looked forward to the activities each week.
The skills taught will need on-going re-enforcement for these pupils, but as I witnessed in the playground
several months after the programme had finished, a simple verbal prompt was all that was needed to
encourage one of the pupils to implement some of the listening skills.

Years 5 and 6

As well as providing essential support in classroom programmes during Reading and Writing, more targeted
support has been given to individuals and groups for literacy using a software programme (18 pupils),
spelling (6 pupils), numeracy (3 pupils) and listening comprehension (2 pupils).

Here is some more specific information on one of the new interventions we offered in 2019 in Year 5/6.

Listening Comprehension

This year we trialed a new intervention with two pupils who were struggling with reading comprehension.
Some pupils have strong decoding skills when reading but struggle with understanding the text, at both a
surface and deeper level. Recent research has made a link between poor reading comprehension and poor
listening ability — the children involved in the research would not have understood the text material even if
it had been read aloud to them. To improve their reading levels, it has been suggested that listening
comprehension had to improve.

In this intervention, once a week for nine weeks, two pupils worked on practical listening comprehension
activities with a teacher aide. This included breaking down a retelling sequence to the word level, and
listening and retelling in short bursts of time, as well as guided listening activities.

Initial data was inconclusive for these pupils, as although one pupil made progress in reading
comprehension the other did not. The limited time available for the intervention may have been a
significant factor in its effectiveness, as research suggests three times a week for interventions results in
the most benefit. We will look to trial it again in 2020 for more frequent sessions over a ten week period.

External support

e Three pupils had access to MOE Speech Language Therapy. This included teacher aide funding to
implement SLT programmes. We have requested SLT support next year for two additional pupils for
whom we have concerns for in their language development.

e Two pupils received High Health Funding to provide support for their physical health needs.
e One pupil was supported by the Public Health Nurse in regards to their health needs.
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e In class support funding was requested for two pupils with high learning needs. One was successful
in getting funding for 2020, but unfortunately the other was not. We will look to refer them to the
RTLB early in 2020.

e One pupil continued to access Language and Learning Intervention from the MOE for Terms One
and Two. He has made such significant gains in his language that he no longer needed this support
beyond Term Two. His progress will continue to be monitored.

e One pupil was referred to the Resource Teacher of Learning and Behaviour (RTLB) and Mana Ake.

e Three pupils were referred to Socially Speaking for their social and sensory needs. The team at
Socially Speaking worked with teaching staff to implement strategies for one pupil.

e One pupil was referred to a Paediatrician in regard to learning delays.
e Two pupils were supported by Van Asch and Resource Teachers of the Deaf

I would also like to acknowledge the caring, professional and committed staff in the Primary Learning
Centre. They each seek to honour God in their work and do their very best for the pupils and parents in
our school. We have fortnightly meetings to provide both professional and spiritual input for our Support
Staff.

We have also had a number of pupils needing additional support with physical health needs including
toileting and skincare. This has necessitated in two of our teacher aids supervising daily or twice daily toilet
sits for two pupils and application of skin cream for one pupil. Whilst these are often funded by the Ministry
of Education under School High Health Needs, it illustrates what can be required of our Teacher Aides and
the unseen work they do to care for our pupils and to enable them to function successfully at school.

I have again worked closely with Catherine Moore, the ELL Co-ordinator for the Primary School, and I
would like to acknowledge her collegial support. We are finding more and more that the needs of our ELL
pupils cross-over between language and learning, so a close working relationship is essential for providing
the best support for our pupils.

None of our programmes would be as effective without the Primary teachers who provide high quality
learning opportunities in their classrooms, and the expertise to identify at-risk pupils. Thank you to Rod
Thompson for his acknowledgement of the work the teacher aides do, and for valuable collaborative
conversations about how to maximise the effectiveness of the Primary Learning Centre.

EHARA TAKUTOA HE TAKITAHL HE TOATAKITINI

M y success should not be bestowed to me alone, as it was not individual success but success of a
collective.

I would also like to thank the Board of Trustees for the additional funding in 2019 for my role as SENCO.
This has enabled me to provide more adequate support to teachers, pupils and their families this year.
Understandably this cannot continue in 2020 due to financial constraints, however I must acknowledge that
this will impact the number of pupils that can access support, and the time frame within which support can
be provided.
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To conclude I would like to share two other perspectives of the support that the Primary Learning Centre
provides:

A Parent’s Perspective

Our son has received support from the Primary Learning Centre for the past two years. As parents we have
felt included, encouraged and supported on every step of the journey; filling in forms to apply for the
appropriate funding, the teacher aide supporting our son, decision making and how we can further assist
our son as parents. There has always been open, two-way communication between us, as parents, Susan,
as the head of the Learning Centre, and the teacher aide. Our son has built a lasting and trusting
relationship with the teacher aide, which in turn has contributed to his amazing progress. We absolutely
believe the Learning Centre has been instrumental in helping our son and are grateful for this support as
parents.

A Teacher’s Perspective

I would like to share how amazing the Primary Learning Centre is under the leadership of Susan Meredith
and her Teacher Aides. In 2019 I had a challenging class, where the needs of the class were so diverse it
would have been impossible to do justice to all the children’s needs, let alone their wellbeing. Without the
support of Susan and the Teacher Aides it would have been too challenging as I would not have been able
to support all learners in my classroom. The time that was invested into the children by Susan and Teacher
Aides was invaluable for myself and the learners. The progress results are proof of this.

The teachers at MGS are dedicated and experienced but without the professional support we receive from
the Learning Centre for the ‘high needs’ children, we would not get the excellent results that we do. If the
children were left without this extra support, they would struggle to make progress. The learning would,
without a doubt, be severely compromised and so would the children’s self esteem! The support the
children receive helps them to believe they can learn, and they are an asset not only to themselves and
their own families, but to Gods kingdom too. This is also the truth!

To me, this means all the time and investment given to them, via the support of the Learning Centre, is
totally worth it and should never be compromised. In my opinion, every bit of support these children
receive now, helps to prevent the ‘ambulance’ collecting them all at the bottom of the hill!

English Language Learner Report 2019 (This section written by Catherine Moore, ESOL co-ordinator)
Overview:

There are 22 different home languages in the primary school with learners sharing heritage with more than
30 countries. The year was quite different than 2018 in that the majority of English Language Learners
(ELL) weren't reliant on time intensive support. It was a productive year with some good progress made by
many of the ELLs. One learner has moved up six levels in her reading and has gained the confidence in all
areas to take more risks. This has led to her growing and progressing so much so that she was given the
Academic award for her class at final prizegiving. We have very much appreciated the support of Rod
Thompson, Head of Primary School, Mike Vannoort, Principal, and close collaboration with Susan Meredith,
SENCO.
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Staffing: There have been two staff working 14 hours a week and 2 at just on 7 hours a week. Staff
worked well together but due to budget restrictions we have not renewed the contracts of the staff on 7
hours weekly for 2020.

2020: Applications that have been accepted for this year indicate that there will be an increase in learners
who will need a higher level of support. Some of these learners have already been at school elsewhere so
this increase is over many year levels rather than just new entrants. We are looking forward to welcoming
some shorter-term International Students also.

The learners:

142 out of 297 of our learners (48%) speak another language at home. Of these 48 (33%) are funded by
the MOE. 15 are migrants and 33 are NZ born. In 2018 at the same time, the funded students were made
up of 19 migrants and 23 NZ born students. The trend for funded students is increasingly for NZ born
children rather than migrants. This has some implications as NZ born children are funded for 12 terms at
school while migrants for 20. Some children will still need support after their funding is complete and this
may be something to be considered more in future years. We have had five International pupils enrolled
through the International College in 2019, and some short-stay pupils as well.

The following shows the ethnic makeup of the primary school (as identified by parents).

MGS Primary by Ethnicity

\V/

= African = Australian Cambodian = Chinese
m Filipino = Indian m Korean m Furopean
= Maori m Samoan ®m Tongan m Other

Our work:

Day to day:

ELAs work alongside learners in class to support core learning times (literacy and numeracy).
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Foundation studies units

Three learners worked in a withdrawal class where they were exposed to, practiced and integrated basic
English language skills for school. Not only were learners exposed to and practiced important language,
they also had a space where they could feel successful and not overwhelmed by the volume of learning
they must do. As a result, these learners became more confident. This program will continue to run as
needed and extended to cover more themes.

Specialist classes:

A need to withdraw some learners in order to target particular areas was identified and small groups of
learners were withdrawn once or twice a week to work on the following:

e Oral language (3 students, 2 terms)
e Grammar (8 students, 1 term)

e Social and emotional language support (20 students, 2 terms)
e Reading (1 student, 2 terms)

There were fewer learners withdrawn in 2019 than in the past for a combination of reasons. One is that
our ELLs are very well supported by their classroom teachers, meaning that ELAs are able to support them
in class. Many learners were at or above cohort, again a testimony to the great work being done and the
high expectations of the teaching staff. In 2019, we had fewer IC students and learners coming into the
school who found English difficult.

As English language learners begin to need more academic language, some require more support in Years
3/4/5 and 6. It is likely that these programs will continue to run in 2020, should teachers indicate the need
for support.

ESOL cluster meetings:

ELAs and myself attended a termly ESOL Cluster meeting where around 80 teachers and teachers’ aides
meet to learn and network in order to support our learners, the school and the community better. We were
able to host the final meeting of the year and parents very kindly assisted in contributing delicious snacks
from around the world for morning tea. We will continue to attend these meetings in 2020.

ELLP’s on Linc Ed.

ELLPS are the reports given to the MOE to receive funding for our ELLs. They record what level the ELL is
working at and what they have achieved. ELLPs are now on Linc Ed. The transition from paper to online
has been smooth however the limitations of Linc Ed have caused some difficulties. These are not confined
to MGS and we will continue to work with Linc Ed to resolve these. If we cannot work this out we may
need to go back to paper to meet MOE requirements.

Goals set in 2018 that have been achieved:
Linc ed has been useful in tracking learner progress and allows easier monitoring.

Earlier in the year a cultural assembly was held, and many learners commented that they really enjoyed
and valued it.

A couple of mothers were able to read in their first language in the library although there was not as much
uptake as hoped.
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ELA’s and I undertook the TALL program. This enabled us to take a good look at what we are doing at MGS
and evaluate. We are thankful for the support the school has given in allowing this PD to be undertaken.
Some of the gains from this course were:

- The ELL team were able to identify needs in our target learners and address those.

- We are more aware of the reasons for in class work vs withdrawing learners and this has helped us
use our resources more wisely.

- After ‘taking a walk around the school’ we felt that classrooms would benefit from reflecting visually
the diversity inside the classroom. At the end of the year packs were made up to give teachers
which contained flags and common greetings of all their learners in 2020. Teachers have put these
on display.

- IC very generously paid for around 40 large flags which will be hung in the Primary Hall and used
on occasions such as the cultural assembly. Flag holders were purchased through the ESOL budget
and I am thankful for this.

Plans for 2020
He waka eke noa
A canoe which we are all in with no exception.

This is a focus theme for the Primary School in 2020 and very much sums up the hope of the ELL team for
the learners we support together with the school community. Specifically, some of our goals for 2020 are:

e Extend the cultural assembly to a cultural day
e Continue to support the theme of turangawaewae through celebrating our diversity.
e To better understand why around 45% of our students at risk are ELLs.

e Have a more ordered and formal assessment program for ELLs that compliments what is going on
in class.

e To better understand the needs of all students who speak another language at home so we can
target their specific needs.

Steps Behaviour Programme Summary 2019:

2019 2018 2017 2016
Incidents Pupils Repeat Incidents Pupils Repeat | Incidents Pupils Repeat | Incidents Pupils Repeat
involved offenders involved | offenders involved | offenders involved | offenders
8 6 2 6 3 1 17 14 3 28 16 7

Summary of 2019 incidents:

We always work closely with pupils and their parents when

° B“"”'”Q ) 1 misbehavior occurs in order to ensure that relationships are
* Rude/disruptive > restored and that the behaviour does not reoccur.
e Violence 2
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Other programmes, initiatives and special character considerations:

Our 2019 theme was Belonging/Turangawaewae. We have
encouraged children to welcome others and help them to feel that they
belong at school. We’ve also learned about being part of God’s family
and knowing his grace, love and forgiveness.

A major project in 2019 was the completion of the Cycle track and
fitness trail, which we have been planning for a couple of years. I'd like
to especially acknowledge the commitment of Nick Pomare to this
project and the help that we received from many school families and
the Board Property Committee.

Kapahaka has continued to grow in popularity, thanks to the

— i, —— enthusiasm of Steve Reid and Rebecca Thompson. The standard of
BELNGING performances has improved hugely in recent years, and bigger and
o bigger venues are needed as more schools join in the Tuhono Festival.

Outdoor Education has once again been an important feature of our Primary School programme. Year 4
enjoyed 2 days at Living Springs, but without staying overnight. Year 6 spent 4 days at Hanmer,
experiencing a number of outdoor challenges. We have recently been reminded by the Ministry of
Education that any such curriculum related activities must be free, and we can ask parents for donations to
offset the cost. This will create challenges for the staff involved in trying to budget for these great
activities.

Counselling hours were allocated to the Primary School in 2018, and we have had limited access to a
counsellor in 2019 (4 students). This is invaluable in some situations where counselling will really help a
child, but the urgency of MS and SC cases do make it difficult for our guidance staff to spend much time in
the Primary School.

The Linc-Ed student management system was used to report to parents in 2019 for the first time. Paper
reports weren't issued. Parents were able to access a range of information about their children’s learning.
They were able to see progress in relation to the NZ Curriculum, the next steps in their child’s learning, and
teacher comments about academic skills, social skills and character development.

The Christian Character of our school is infused into our learning experiences in the Primary Classes.
Although there are scripture lessons, times of Bible reading, prayer and worship together, the Christian
‘content’ is just as evident in the way that we care for one another, spontaneous prayer, and conversations
that arise out of curriculum topics.

Concerns and Challenges:

E-learning and access to ICT has improved in 2019 due to the purchase of multiple i-pads and
improvements in the speed and stability of our school network. There are still areas of frustration, but
progress is being made, and staff are becoming more familiar with the Digital Technologies Curriculum and
a variety of ways of teaching with technology (e-learning).
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English Language Learners and cultural diversity: As discussed by Catherine Moore in her report above,
48% of our Primary School students speak another language at home. Ministry of Education funding for
these students is inadequate, which means that the school has to provide additional resources to support
them. Our English Language Learners are also over-represented in groups needing additional learning
support in a range of subjects and they require considerable extra help from their teachers. As these
learners move through the school, these same challenges may be seen in Middle School and Senior
College, unless we can bring them up to the same level as their peers by the time they complete year 6.

Rod Thompson
Head of the Primary School
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Middle School Annual Report 2019

Introduction:

The following Annual Report provides an overview of Special Character, Academic Progress and Extra
Curricular Initiatives from within the Middle School during 2019. We are grateful for the loving hand of the
Father whose gentle guidance and abundant blessings were evident throughout the course of the year.

MIDDLE SCHOOL OVERVIEW:

4 103

Year 7 4 4 2
Year 8 4 8 2 6 100
Year 9 5 3 7 12 120
Year 10 5 10 4 14 126
Total 18 25 15 34 449
SPECIAL CHARACTER

At the centre of all that we undertake in the Middle School sits our distinctive Christian special character.
This is both the foundation upon which we build our curriculum and character development and the filter
through which we pass all that we do from design to delivery. Our school values of Character, Excellence
and Service to the Glory of God have been incorporated into the classroom as well as the pastoral care we
have delivered to students, with the goal of glorifying Him! The following highlights provide a small but
beautiful snapshot of how special character was outworked during 2019.

The Middle School wholeheartedly embraced the Year 7-13 school theme of ‘Tarangawaewae’
(Belonging). This theme was delivered through assemblies, form class devotions and other teaching
programmes. As a Middle School we were delighted that the theme connected with the findings of
our NZCER Wellbeing survey and our plans to develop a Biblical understanding of positive social
culture within the Middle School students.

The Middle School Leadership developed and implemented an initiative to grow the Biblical
understanding of positive social culture within our students. While this was not an area in which
there was a glaring issue, the NZCER wellbeing survey results highlighted voice from students as
well as staff that suggested this was an area that could be further strengthened. The Middle School
Social Culture plan was based in Matthew 22: 37-39 "The school atmosphere / culture must honour
the commands to "Love God with all your heart, soul and mind and Love your neighbour as
yourself.” To assist students in developing their understanding of this we unpacked three key areas with
them: Belonging, Honour and Resilience.

Middle School students participated in their regular Scripture programmes as well as having each
curriculum subject delivered through the integration of Biblical truth and understanding.

The Middle School Service days ran successfully in December with groups of students blessing
members of the wider community through a variety of activities. An example of this was the Year
10 cohort who continued the partnership we have developed with the Department of Conservation;
assisting them with work at a reserve at Yarr's Flat — near Lake Ellesmere.
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MIDDLE SCHOOL HIGHLIGHTS IN 2019

There were a significant number of initiatives, projects and events that occurred in the Middle School in 2019.
The summary below provides a snapshot of some of the key highlights:

e The introduction of our Social Culture plan was a real highlight of the year. It has been wonderful to
invest in the understanding of how we can work together to support positive growth and development
in belonging, honour and resilience. We are excited to continue this important work in the coming
years.

e Year 9 camps were a success for the Year 9 cohort. Each class benefitted from the programme
delivered while at Mt White focussing on building connections within the class through adventure-
based learning and developing a sense of appreciation for creation while in the outdoors environment.
Mr Liebert did an excellent job of connecting Year 13 leaders with classes to run ongoing interactions
with Year 9 classes throughout the year.

e A successful Year 9 and 10 Dance was held in the Primary hall at the beginning of Term 4. The Year
10 pupil leaders did a superb job of planning and running this event.

e The Year 10 Leaders successfully reinstated the ‘Middle School’s Got Talent” competition in Term 2.
It was wonderful to see such talent on show from singing to dancing! We look forward to this
competition continuing in 2020.

e The Middle School Production ‘Peter Pan Jnr’ was exceptional. The quality of each show was testament
to the talent in our students and in the staff that worked tirelessly to make the show a success!

e The Year 8 cohort enjoyed their field trips to the Museum and Adrenalin Forest in Term 1. They also
enjoyed their ski trip to Porters in August.

e The Year 7 cohort enjoyed their activities day at Spencer Park in Term One, a variety of field trips
and their Peer Support Programme.

e The Middle School Picnic Days were a wonderful way to end the year with the Year 10’s going to
Waipara Boys Brigade Camp; Year 9’s to Blue Skies and the Year 7 and 8's having a combined day of
fun at Jellie Park.

e The Year 10's service day with the Department of Conservation was successful as the cohort assisted
with the 1 Billion Trees project at Yarrs Flat, near Lake Ellesmere. It was wonderful to be able to
continue our relationship with DOC. Years 7, 8 and 9 all participated in a variety of service activities
at the end of the year. As mentioned in the previous section, it was wonderful to see the profits of
the Year 8 Market Week go into their Service Day activities at the end of the year.

PUPIL ACHIEVEMENT ANALYSIS

This section outlines pupil achievement across Years 7-10 in both Literacy (Reading and Writing) and
Numeracy.

Notes:

Year 7 & 8:

The results below provide an indication of which level (with included sub-level) of the New Zealand
Curriculum our student have reached. Teachers make an overall judgement based on the whole year’s
work across a variety of Curriculum objectives. By the end of the year, Year 8 pupils should have mastered
Level 4 of the Curriculum (i.e.: 4P or 4A). For Year 7 we would expect pupils to have reached Curriculum
sub-level 4B by the end of the year.
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Years 9 & 10:

The tables in the Year 9 and 10 sections show the results for English and Mathematics. All other Curriculum
Leaders (Including CLs in English and Maths) conduct their own analysis of the achievement of all pupils,
including priority learner groups. This analysis is shown in their 2019 Curriculum Area Report.

Curriculum Sub-levels: (Used across Years 7-9)
Final judgements are made against each level of the New Zealand Curriculum. We use sub-levels to
indicate which part of a particular level is achieving at. These sub-levels are as follows:

B — Basic: A student is at the beginning of mastering the objectives of that particular level. They may meet
some but not all of the requirements or may be inconsistent in their meeting of those objectives

P — Proficient: A student has largely mastered the requirements or objectives at this level and is consistent
in meeting these

A — Advanced: A student is consistently meeting requirements widely across the level objectives and may
be beginning to meet the objectives of the level above

In Year 10 student achievement is measured using the language of NCEA (Not Achieved — Excellence) This
standards-based assessment is aligned to the levels of the NZ curriculum. For example, a Year 10 student
achieving at Merit level is likely to be at the advanced end of Level 5.

YEAR 7

Year 7 Reading:

Reading - End of Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level
Subject

30

20

10

1 Profident Level 1 Advanced Level 2 Basic Level 2 Proficient Level 2 Advanced

anced Level 4 Basic Level 4 Proficient Level 4 Advanced

Commentary / Analysis:
- 81% of our pupils have reached Level 4B of the curriculum by the end of the year. A further 10% of students sit
one sub-level below this. This is a pleasing result for us as
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Year 7 Reading: Ethnic and Gender Comparisons

Reading - End of Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level
Subject

2
g

e
3

.................................

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
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Commentary / Analysis:
- 100% of our Pasifika Students are achieving at or above the expected level for Year 7 Students (2
students total)

- 75% of Maori Students are achieving at or above the expected level for Year 7 Students. (4 Students)
The one student who has not yet reached the level is one sub-level below and will be identified for
Year 8 staff in 2020.

- 24% of males and 15% of girls had not reached the expected standard by the end of the Year in
Reading. This trend sits in line with previous years and is above the most recent national comparison
(this statistic has been phased out along with National Standards.

- A similar amount of boys and girls are at either Level 4B or 4P (74% Boys and 78% Girls) There are
slightly more girls achieving well above the expected level compared to boys.
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Year 7 Writing:

Writing - End of Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level
Subject

40

30

20

10

Level 1 Bas Level 1 Profident Level 1 Advanced Level 2 Basic Level 2 Proficent Level 2 Advanced

Level 3 Basi Level 3 Profident Level 3 Advanced Level 4 Basic Level 4 Proficient Level 4 Advanced

Commentary / Analysis:

- 57% of pupils are at the expected level for the end of Year 7 in Writing. This is lower than the most
recent national average. While this is a higher percentage than in previous years, 28% of pupils are
just one sub-level below the expected level. This cohort will need close support as they move into Year
8 and focussed support will aim to improve their progress.

- As our Primary have shifted to LincEd — we have been unable to obtain comparative sub-level data to
compare this cohort accurately to their 2018 results.

- The majority of pupils in this cohort moved between 1 and 3 sub-levels demonstrating that they have
progressed despite a higher percentage of pupils not yet being at the expected level.
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Year 7 Writing: Ethnic and Gender

Writing - End of Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level

Writing - End of Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level
Subject

.................................

................................................

" 16%
s 15 1a%
3 0%
25% 2f
28% 10
19% % 7% 7%
o d 3% 3% 3%
i I |
p v " Females
ropeans for
Subject
4

Comparisons:

Commentary / Analysis:

- In Writing, 66% of girls were at the expected level for Year 7 compared to 46% of boys.

- 2 of our 4 Maori pupils are at the expected level for Year 7 pupils in Writing. Of the other two, one is
one sub-level below the expected level. Both of these students will be identified as requiring further
support in Year 8.

- Both Pasifika pupils have reached the expected level for the end of Year 7 which is a pleasing result.

Year 7 Mathematics:

Overall:
End of Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level
Subject
40
38%
35
30
26%

25
20

15 14%

10

5

oo 230 2°e 200
. | =
Total
for
Subject
) - = =
Level 1 Basi Level 1 Profident Level 1 Advanced Level 2 Basic Level 2 Proficient Level 2 Advanced
=i = -
evel 3 Basic Level 3 Profident Level 3 Advanced Level 4 Basic Level 4 Proficient Level 4 Advanced
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Commentary / Analysis:
- 80% of pupils were at the expected level at the end of the year in Mathematics. This sits above the
most recent national average. A further 15% of pupils sit one sub-level below the expected level.

- This has been a slight drop from last year (85% were at the expected level) though the comparison is
against a different cohort.

Year 7 Maths: Ethnic and Gender Comparisons:

......

i}
f
(ELH |
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Commentary / Analysis:

- A higher percentage of boys were at the expected level in Mathematics compared to girls (boys 84%
and girls 77%)

- 14% of the boys and 16% of the girls were only one sub-level below the expected level at the end of
Year 7

- 3 of our 4 Maori pupils and both of our Pasifika pupils were at the expected level in Mathematics at the

end of Year 7. It is pleasing to note that all of our Maori and Pasifika students progressed at least one
sub-level over the course of the year.
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YEAR 8

Year 8 Reading:

Reading - End Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level

Subject

40
40%
35
30
28%
25
20
15
13%
~
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Total
for
Subject
evel 1 Basi el 1 Profident Level 1 Advanced Level 2 Basic Level 2 Profident Level 2 Advanced
== = =
ol 3 Bas L el 3 Profident Level 3 Advanced Level 4 Basic Level 4 Proficdent Level 4 Advanced
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Commentary / Analysis:

- In Reading, 82% of all Year 8 pupils were at the expected level for the end of Year 8. This was a very
pleasing result and was well above the most recent national average. This cohort have stayed on par
with their progress when compared to 2018.

- The remaining 8% of pupils currently sit one sub-level below the expected level and these pupils
should progress to expected levels as they move through Years 9 and 10.

- A small percentage will need further support as they enter Year 9 and these will be identified to the
staff in the English Department

Reading: Ethnic and Gender Comparisons:
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Commentary / Analysis:
- 81% of male pupils and 84% of female pupils were at the expected level for the end of Year 8. This
result is also on par with the same cohort as Year 7 students.

- 6 out of 8 Maori and 1 out 2 Pasifika pupils were at the expected level for the end of Year 8 in
Reading. Those students who are below the expected level have progressed compared to the end of
Year 7 but remain below the expected level. These students will continue to receive support as the
enter into Year 9. As indicated in previous annual reports, a number of these students entered our
school well below the expected level and are making steady progress each year.

Year 8 Writing:

Writing - End Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level
Subject

41%

26%

§
HE
i
i

Commentary / Analysis:

- 73% of all pupils were at the expected level for Year 8 pupils in Writing at the end of the year. This
has been an increase in the same cohort compared to the 2018 results. (2018: 63% at the expected
level). This is a pleasing result as targeted support for learners in this area was identified as a key
initiative in 2019. It also provides some evidence that our Write That Essay PLD has been effective in
improving student achievement.

- 13% of pupils sit only one sub-level below the expected level. This means that 86% of our Year 8
cohort were at or very close to the expected level in 2018.

- Itis pleasing to note that this cohort has progressed significantly over the course of Year 8. In Year 7,
36% of students were not at the expected level; whereas at the end of Year 8 this has dropped to
27%. These students have progressed significantly considering the expected level also shifts from one
year to the next.
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Writing: Ethnic and Gender Comparisons:
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Commentary / Analysis:

80% of girls were at the expected level for Writing. This is significantly higher that the boys who were
at 69%.

When comparing the same cohort at the end of Year 7, 54% of boys were at the expected level so it is
pleasing to see this increase to 69% While this is very pleasing, we have a number of boys still to
come up to the expected level. Equally pleasing is the fact that in Year 7 73% of girls were at the
expected level in Writing and this has increased to 80%

22% of boys sit only one sub-level below the expected level meaning that 76% of boys are at or very
close to the expected level in Writing.

5 out of 8 Maori pupils are at, or have exceeded, the expected level for Year 8 pupils in Writing. This is
a pleasing result. 2 further pupils sit at Level 4B — just one sub-level below where they are expected to
be.

Our Pasifika students have progressed but remain beneath the expected level for a Year 8 student. As
with reading, targeted support will be identified and provided for these students in Year 9.
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Year 8 Mathematics:

End of Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level
Subject

37%

20

10

Commentary / Analysis:

- 83% of Year 8 pupils were at the expected level for Year 8 pupils in Mathematics. This has been an
increase in comparison to the same cohort at the end of Year 7 (2018) where 80% of students were at
or above the expected level

- 12% of pupils sit one sub-level below the expected level meaning that they are very close. When
including these pupils 92% of pupils are at or very close to the expected level.

Year 8 Mathematics: Ethnic and Gender Comparisons:

End of Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level End of Year Overall Teacher Judgement of Curriculum Level
Subject Subject

Turopeans Maon Pasiika  Asia  MELAA  Othee T e T et
.......
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

Commentary / Analysis:

- Boys and Girls had very similar levels of achievement in Mathematics with 81% of boys and 86% of
girls at the expected level of Year 8 pupils. Interestingly, girls have progressed significantly in
comparison to 2018 where as Year 7's 76% were at or above the expected level. This increase of 10%
is pleasing.

- 5 of our 8 Maori students have reached the expected level for the end of Year 8. 2 more sit just one
sub-level below this. For our Pasifika students, one was at and one below the expected level.
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YEAR 9

YEAR 9 English (Literacy)
Year 9 pupils are assessed according to Curriculum Levels

In English Results are calculated by combining assessments in Reading and Writing to give an average
level of achievement at a curriculum sub- level.

Reading:
4B or Less 4P 4A / 5B 5P and above
All Pupils 8% 10% 55% 25%
Maori 33% (1 Pupil) - 33% (1 Pupil) 33% (1 pupil)
Pasifika - 14% (1 pupil) 71% (5 pupils) 14% (1 pupil)
Males 12% 11% 59% 19%
Females 4%, 10% 53% 33%
Writing:
4B or Less 4P 4A / 5B 5P and above
All Pupils 8% 14% 51% 27%
Maori 33% (1 pupil) 33% (1 pupil) 33% (1 pupil) -
Pasifika - 43% (3 pupils) 57% (4 pupils) -
Males 14% 24% 49% 14%
Females 4%, 7% 52% 37%

Analysis /| Commentary:
More detailed commentary and analysis can be found in the Annual Report from the English Department.
For the purpose of this report I have made some general observations.
e It is pleasing to note that in Reading 80% of students are at Level 4A/5B — 5P and above. We do
have an extra 25-30 students join at Year 9; however, for the point of comparison, as Year 8's 62%
of students were at this level at the end of 2018. This provides evidence that students have
continued to progress towards and beyond the expected level.

e Similarly in Writing 78% is pleasing as the comparative number for the same cohort in 2018 was

49%

e Itis extremely pleasing to see success in both Reading for our Maori and Pasifika pupils. There are
4 Maori and Pasifika students who will require further support in 2020.

e Girls have out-performed boys in both Reading and Writing.
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YEAR 9 Mathematics (Numeracy)
Year 9 pupils are assessed according to Curriculum Levels

In Mathematics, six assessments are combined to give an average percentage of assessments achieved at
a particular curriculum sub-level. These assessments are based on strands and some strands are only
assessed once per year. This makes it difficult to determine progress from Year 8 as pupils in Year 8 are
given an Overall Teacher Judgement.

4B or Less 4P 4A / 5B 5P and above
All Pupils 12% 12% 44% 32%
Maori 12% 13% 50% 25%
Pasifika 19% 26 45% 10%
Males 11% 11% 46% 32%
Females 13% 13% 42% 32%

Analysis /| Commentary:
More detailed commentary and analysis can be found in the Annual Report from the Mathematics
Department. For the purpose of this report I have made some general observations.

e 76% of all assessments sat by Year 9 pupils were passed at the expected level for a Year 9 student.

e 75% of assessments by Pasifika students were at the expected level for Mathematics at the end of Year 9. This
number is lower for Maori at 55% of assessments. This statistic will be passed on to the teachers of Year 10
Maths in 2020.

o Boys and girls have achieved at similar levels with a slightly higher percentage of boys being at the expected
level compared to girls. (78% Boys and 74% Girls)

YEAR 10
English: (Reading)
All Pupils (%) Maori (%) Pasifika (%) Female (%) Male (%)
Excellence 10% 9% - 11% 8%
Merit 32% 9% 60% 52% 13%
Achieved 46% 73% 40% 34% 58%
Not Achieved 12% 9% - 2% 22%
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English: (Writing)

All Pupils (%) Maori (%) Pasifika (%) Female (%) Male (%)
Excellence 22% 10% - 35% 10%
Merit 31% 33% 56% 37% 25%
Achieved 32% 33% 44% 25% 40%
Not Achieved 15% 24% = 4% 25%

Analysis /| Commentary:
More detailed commentary and analysis can be found in the Annual Report from the English Department.
For the purpose of this report I have made some general observations.
e Itis extremely pleasing that 88% of our Year 10 pupils have Achieved in relation to Reading and
85% in relation to Writing.

e Our results for both Reading and Writing for Maori and Pasifika students is pleasing

e Girls have out-performed boys in both Reading and Writing within this cohort.

Mathematics: 6 Achievement Standards per pupil

All Pupils (%) Maori (%) Pasifika (%) Female (%) Male (%)
Excellence 22% 9% 3% 26% 18%
Merit 40% 46% 66% 46% 35%
Achieved 32% 37% 28% 24% 40%
Not Achieved 6% 8% 3% 5% 7%

Analysis /| Commentary:
More detailed commentary and analysis can be found in the Annual Report from the Mathematics
Department. For the purpose of this report I have made some general observations.

e Itis excellent to see that we have high pass rates across the cohort for Numeracy. 94% overall and
92/97% for Maori and Pasifika pupils is a very pleasing result indeed,

e Boys and Girls have very similar pass rates though girls have out-performed boys at the Merit and
Excellence level.
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ATTENDANCE
Pupil Group % Attendance
All Pupils Male Female Maori Pasifika

Year 7 93.4 94.1 92.9 90.0 95.2
Year 8 91.3 91.9 90.6 91.1 93.1
Year 9 94.5 95.2 93.8 90.8 91.9
Year 10 91.2 92.0 90.2 89.3 87.3
Overall(Y1-13) 92.5 93.1 91.8 90.1 91.5

2019 DEVELOPMENTS

= 2019 saw the successful introduction of the Middle School Social Culture plan. This was introduced
through assemblies, in form times and through the work that Deans have done working with
students in disciplinary and pastoral support.

= The embedding of Write that Essay in our Year 7 and 8 programmes continued throughout 2019.
This will continue as common practice in 2020 and beyond. This programme seems to be providing
a positive impact: as an example, in Writing our 63% of our 2018 Year 7 cohort were at the
expected curriculum level for writing, by the end of 2019 this same cohort had 73% at the expected
level. This is pleasing progress and we believe that the programme has contributed to this
progression.

= 2019 was the first year of our revised Year 9 options delivery with Technology, Language and Art
courses moving to half year from the old major-minor system. Anecdotal feedback from Curriculum
Leaders has been that this shift has been a positive one. In 2020 a curriculum review is scheduled
in the annual plan and we will look at this element as part of this review.

= In 2019 our weekly Waiora meetings (AP, HOS, Guidance Team) were an extremely beneficial
development. Regular conversations to identify and assist with pastoral needs for students and their
waiora were an excellent addition to the pastoral care offered to students.

» QOur Student leadership groups were embedded as indicated in our plan for 2019. This will be
further strengthened with the opening of the Centre for Leadership and Influence and we plan to
incorporate this resource in further into these programmes in 2020 and beyond.

2020 Initiatives:

* The implementation of the BYOD programme for Year 9 and 10 will be undertaken. Teachers in this
part of the Middle School will incorporate blended learning based from BYOD into their teaching.

» As indicated above, beginning in Term 2 we will open a review into the delivery of Curriculum in the
Middle School. This will be a wide scope and will cover a number of areas.
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= We will continue to implement our Middle School Social Culture Plan and refine this to be integrated
fully with the school wide Social Culture Plan that is being developed and delivered by the Waiora
Lead Team.

» Targeted support for students that have been identified in our data analysis will be provided. We
will continue to provide relevant information to all teaching staff via both our class profiles and via
the Learning Centre.

= The Year 7 and 8 Team will implement a new combined unit in Term One 2020. This is with the aim
of refining the delivery of Curriculum in this part of the school to include a 2-year cyclical plan. This
is an exciting development for the Year 7 and 8 Teams who desire to work closely together.

CLOSING COMMENTS

2019 was another year in which we saw the hand of the Lord and his blessing upon as a Middle School.
Despite navigating some difficult seasons within the school year (bereavements and the tragedy of March
15%), the atmosphere of belonging and support remained strong through the love and care provided for
our students by dedicated staff. We continue to pray that we are aligned with the Lord’s will and purpose
as we seek to educate our students from a Scriptural foundation and through a Biblical lens. I would like to
extend my heartfelt thanks to all staff who have taught Middle School classes and programmes in 2019.

In Christ,

Matt Barlow
Head of Middle School
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Senior College Annual Report 2019

SPECIAL CHARACTER

Turangawaewae — Middleton Grange School, a place for staff, students, family and friends to stand accepted, valued
and free in the grace emanating from our Lord Jesus Christ and His death and resurrection on our behalf. Led by our
Head Students in assemblies, in prayer-walks around the school, in community initiatives and in their own carriage and
demeanour, the message that this is a school where everyone can be safe and can develop according to the call of God
on our lives was declared into the entire environment. Paramount was the reminder that the foundation of our sense
of belonging and security is the Word of God and that every one of us needs to meditate on His Word day and night
(Psalm 1) in order to remain steadfast, honouring and resilient.

The design and detail of the school’s Social Culture Plan as a Waiora tool was canvassed with the Senior College staff
and refined by the Dean Team as it might specifically apply within the Senior College landscape. This work is still in
progress across the school, and the “fit” for Senior College is in developmental stage.

Year 13 continued their Christian Focus Days (CFD) each of Terms 1-3, again aiming to prepare our graduands for their
exit from school and entry into tertiary, workforce and gap pursuits. A range of folk, including ex-pupils were invited
along to share their experiences of operating as Christians in a secular workplace, and of ministering in an overtly
Christian environment. An Apologetic focus of the CFDs encouraged, challenged and armed students to develop a world
view and determine whether or not they will conform to the world’s standards and “wisdom”. This aim governed the
choice of themes and speakers throughout the year. Student attendance was excellent and feedback was positive.

The Men of Honour programme, initiated and developed by Geoff Steyn, moved into Year 12 this year, building on the
foundation laid in 2018. Dr Martin Swan has been a key speaker in this programme, bringing a thoroughly biblical basis
for relating to others with integrity and respect. Real Talk and Healthy Living were also brought in to provide
understanding and tools for looking after others’ and own holistic health.
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NCEA Certificate Achievement
Overall endorsements were generally up and compare favourably with National and Decile 8-10. This is confirmed by
the greatly increased number of Gold Academic Awards presented recently, especially at Level 2.

Percentage of People Achieving
Level 1 NCEA Certificate
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80 -
70 - m School
60 -
50 - m School (excl. int)
40 A
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20 A
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Percentage of People Achieving
Level 2 NCEA Certificate
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Level 3 NCEA Certificate
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Cohort Graphs

Yr 11 2017 Cohort
Percentage passing each Level
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Certificate Endorsements

Level 1 endorsement

Level 1 Endorsement

90
80

70

M
60

B M (Nat)
50

mE
40

W E (Nat)

30 m Total

20 W Total (Nat)

10

2016 2017 2018 2019

41 35.1 39.3 30 19.8 28.7 71 54.9
29.7 35.6 39.4 36.8 20.1 28.5 66.5 55.7
40 34.6 40.4 28.8 20.9 29.5 68.8 55.5
48.5 34.8 41.1 27.3 24.1 28.2 75.8 58.9

Level 2 endorsement

Level 2 Endorsement
70

60

50 M

m M (Nat)

40
NE

30 BE (Nat)

20 M Total

m Total (Nat)
10

2016 2017 2018 2019

38 27 30.9 28 15.8 23.7 66 42.8
34.7 27.1 30.2 25.6 16 23.7 60.3 43.1
35.5 25.6 32.1 30.2 16.4 24.2 65.7 42
27 25.9 33 20.7 16.7 23.6 47.7 42.6
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Level 3 endorsement

Level 3 Endorsement
60

50

M

40
m M (Nat)

30 mE

B E (Nat)
20 M Total

10 M Total (Nat)

2016 2017 2018 2019

35 28.5 33.9 18 14.7 19.1 53 43.2
32.7 28.1 32.8 21.6 15.6 20.4 54.3 43.7
32.9 27.4 33.8 14.3 15.1 19.2 47.2 42.5
34.3 27 32.7 18.9 15.1 19.4 53.2 42.1

Priority Learners

Maori Achievement 2019
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Pasifika Achievement 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level3
2019 |2018 | 2017 2019 | 2018 2017 2019 | 2018 2017

Number of pupils | 11 9 6 7 5 10 5 7 3
Certificate 92 63 100 100 100 90 100 100 100
Merit 70 50 50 28 60 22 20 29 0
Excellence 0 25 0 14 0 11 0 0 0
Num 100 100 100

Lit 100 100 100

UE Lit 86 80 70 80 86 67
UE 80 71 67

Special Learning Needs Achievement 2019

Level 1
gained Level 1 literacy and numeracy

Level 2

9/9 pupils attempted NCEA L1. All gained Level 1 with 2 gaining Level 1 endorsed with Merit. All

10/13 pupils completed Level 2.1 gained an Excellence endorsement. 1gained Merit

Endorsement. 7 gained UE Literacy. 2 are on a supported learning programme.

Level 3
2 gained University Entrance.

Analysis of NCEA Results

7/11 pupils completed Level 3. 2 of the students completed Level 2. 9 gained UE literacy and

Significant Features Explanation

Certificate
passes

Level 1 -

The pass rate for L1 domestic pupils has
increased slightly, and the gap between
International College (IC) students and
domestic is the smallest it has been at
this level.

Over 75% of pupils who achieved L1
gained Endorsements, with the majority
at Merit. 6/7 Maori pupils gained an
Endorsement.

The differential in gender rates was
more pronounced in 2019, favouring
girls. This had evened in 2018.

Despite the higher proportion of At Risk (AR) students in
Y11 2019, achievement has been solid, indicating
interventions were applied to good effect.

The majority of students in Y11 were well motivated and
were rewarded for their excellent effort.

A number of boys with varying degrees of mental health
issues. One serious, affecting attendance and academic
outcomes. Counsellors and parents very involved. Others
improved with coaching and monitoring.

1 pupil with computer abuse issues — potential to derail
NCEA achievement. Discipling and disincentives applied.
1 boy with ongoing health had very poor attendance but
has achieved despite this.
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Maori and Pasifika achievement was
significantly higher this year.

Level 2 -

Domestic pass is significantly up on
2018 achievement figure — 95% at L2
compared with 87% at L1.

Only 1 female did not gain NCEA L2.

Maori and Pasifika pupils profile well
again: Maori — 94% (17/18 achieved
NCEA L2); Pasifika — 100%.

Merit Endorsements were down at this
level

Level 3 -

Achievement is down at this Level for
both full cohort and domestic pupils
(91% 2019 cf 93% 2018; equivalent to
3 pupils differ)

Gender gap is still small with girls still
slightly ahead.

3 boys with confused priorities needed much support.
One with parental health issues in the background.
Improvements noted later in the year.

This statistic is affected by the lower numbers in the cohort
compared with 2018.

The interventions applied to At Risk pupils, as well as
Gateway opportunities, combined with strong focus on
monitoring by the Deans have contributed to a more
effective work ethic and aspiration from pupils.

In 2020 Endorsement at L2 will become a focused target,
with reference to L1 high endorsement rates in 2019.

The large number of health issues amongst Y13 pupils may
have affected achievement.

The percentages represent a very small number of pupils.

2018 (72%)
2/6 Maori pupils gained UE
4/5 Pasifika pupils gained UE.

Level 1 98% of domestic pupils gained All domestic pupils achieved Literacy including our Priority
Literacy and Literacy Learners.
Numeracy
97.8% including Internationals.
99% (including Internationals) of All pupils in the Core Maths class and Priority Learners
pupils gained Numeracy. achieved numeracy this year.
UE Literacy 75% gained UE Literacy cf 80% 2018.  Some of our high performing pupils chose to attempt only
1 of the 2 English Externals in which they were entered.
7/13 L2 Priority learners gained UE Literacy
9/11 L3 Priority learners gained UE Literacy
UE UE pass rate at 74% - is up slightly on 3 pupils have made up the credits needed to get UE this

year through Hagley and Te Kura.
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Scholarship 11 Scholarships. 66 entries; 14 exams were not sat. Some pupils are still attempting multiple
Scholarship exams and may be selecting which exams they will sit.

General Achievement is still high at Middleton Grange School and exceed statistics of National and Decile 8-

Comment 10 in all categories. A significant number of pupils again experienced severe mental health issues
during the year. Many of them exceeded our expectations and achieved regardless. Our good
partnership with families and whanau, who support us and their young people, is of enormous benefit
to the achievement of our pupils in Senior College. This is greatly appreciated and is worth nurturing.

ATTENDANCE

Attendance levels have continued an upward trend at all Year Levels. The small number of student of concern in this
area have been well monitored by the Senior College pastoral team

Attendance Comparison (%)

2017 2018 2019
Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13
90 89 88 91 90 86 92.7 91.2 91.7
89 88 89 93 91 87 93.1 92.7 93
92 89 87 89 89 84 91.9 89.9 90.6
92 84 87 90 87 82 91.9 87.8 90.2
92 91 90 91 90 86 924 91.9 91.8

HIGHLIGHTS
Very few serious behavioural issues resulting in stand-downs

Focus and intentionality by the vast majority of students on academic engagement and achievement
Willingness of many students to stand and live by their faith convictions

Year 13 Camp — a time of developing personal growth and cohort cohesiveness

House Haka competition — 2" year — noticeably higher quality

CHALLENGES
Increasing numbers of students showing diminishing resilience to assaults on mental health

Groups of students overcome with attachment deficit-related anger and disempowerment and translating
that into a variety of behavioural expressions
Changing nature of the NCEA Review creating uncertainties

In Your Light Shall We See Light  Psalm 36:9 2019 Annual Report Page 65

Character, Excellence, Service, for the Glory of God



Middleton Grange School |
Annual Report 2019 |

LEADERSHIP

The second year of the new Student Leadership Structure showed few issues

The Leadership Team was active and provided strong spiritual role modelling and influence

The students are beginning to take more initiative and are creating their own role and focus but checking in for
approval and advice

The Tribute Assembly was a highlight — well run, totally appropriate, meaningful and focused

NEXT STEPS

1. At Risk UE Literacy Group continues to be closely monitored by both Deans, Curriculum Leader of
English and Learning Centre.

L2 Merit Endorsements focus through 2020 to maintain the pleasing L1 Endorsement rate.
Review of Scholarship programme: rationale and delivery.

Respond appropriately to NCEA Review outcomes.

Develop a Waiora programme for girls to complement the Men of Honour programme.

ik

Ruth Velluppillai
Head of Senior College
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International College Annual Report 2019

1 Peter4vs8—-11
“Above all, love each other deeply, because love covers over a multitude of sins. Offer
hospitality to one another without grumbling. Each of you should use whatever gift you have
received to serve others, as faithful stewards of God'’s grace in its various forms. If anyone
speaks, they should do so as one who speaks the very words of God. If anyone serves, they
should do so with the strength God provides, so that in all things God may be praised through
Jesus Christ.”

SPECIAL CHARACTER

The International Assemblies and Christian Studies programmes delivered to the International students are designed
to challenge non-Christians and to encourage Christian young people in their walk with God. Courtenay Van Maastricht
taught the higher level of English students and Sam Anderson, the newer or lower level of English students.

Rosemary Allison has worked extensively on developing our Christian Studies programme. We have purchased
resources, including Bibles in a variety of languages and will continue to do the programme in 2020. We were greatly
blessed by the Chinese Church. They brought us eighteen Chinese bilingual Bibles and early in the year, a donation of
$2,000 and another $2,000 again at the end of the year. These donations will be used in 2020 to further develop our
Christian Studies programme for international students. The lady in charge of the children’s ministry at the church was
an International student here at MGS many years ago, and her youngest daughter Zara, is now in Year 10.

For Year 13 Christian Focus Days we have tried developing a programme that is more relevant to the needs of our
international students and brought in a pastor of a local Chinese church to speak to the group, along with two young
people. We will look at developing this for 2020 into a model that can be used each year, focusing on an introduction
of the Gospel message to the Year 13 group.

Sophie Bates, an ex-MGS student, was contracted for the first time in the history of the International College, as the
24/7 Youth Worker for international students. Sophie had five hours per week where she came into school, mentored
students and along with another 24/7 youth worker, ran a girl’s group. Sophie attended most of our events for
international students and was key in getting students involved in the Friday youth programme run by South West
Baptist called SYC. This is a wonderful blessing to the school. We have regular meetings with the 24/7 Canterbury
Regional Coordinator, Luke Gardiner, to support Sophie and report back on the programme with the international
students.

Easter Camp was successful again, with over forty International students joining the SYC team and the bulk of these
were from MGS. There were also various other Church Youth Groups that took our international students with them,
so the International College would have been very well represented at the 2019 Easter Camp.

The staff at the International College meet weekly to pray for International students and the staff of the school.
INTERNATIONAL BOARD OF ADVISORS (IBOA)
The IBOA members were Mel Hikuroa, David Gillon, Mike Vannoort, Craig Utting, Colleen Steyn and Dean McKenzie.

The IBOA met regularly throughout the year, with all major decisions and activities being discussed at these
meetings. The advice and support of this group has been invaluable to the leadership of the International College.
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MARKET REPORT BACK

Student Numbers for 2019 — The budgeted numbers were set at 122 FTE’s in October 2018. We ended the year on
106.75 FTE’s. By the end of the year 144 international students had visited our school in total. Historical numbers are
as follows:

2019 2018 | 2017 | 2016 | 2015 | 2014 | 2013 | 2012 | 2011 | 2010 | 2009 | 2008

106.75 | 117.5 | 115.5 | 89.75 | 98.75 | 94.75 | 89 72 108 | 118 |132 | 121

The reasons for the drop in expected numbers are numerous and have been dealt with in my Marketing Plan for 2020.
An indicator is shown in the ethnicity numbers in the table below, namely the significant drop in Chinese students.
This is not isolated to Middleton only, but is experienced across New Zealand.

The ethnic composition of students for 2019, 2018 and 2017 for full year totals:

Korea | PR Japan | Thailand | Germany | Vietnam | Hong | Taiwan | Argentina | Indonesia
China Kong
2019 12 69 34 10 8 0 0 3 5 2
2018 11 80 29 8 14 0 0 1 2 2
2017 7 84 30 14 11 3 0 2 2 2

Marketing events for 2019 included the following:

Germany — | visited partner schools and visited and presented in classes and at a parent and student evening with two
previous years students and the coordinator, Elfie Kohler.

Vietnam — | visited Vietnam in May before Thailand, to be part of Christchurch Educated events in Ho Chi Minh City
and Hanoi. | visited agents in both cities and presented to a group of students and their families in Hanoi who were
visiting MGS later in the year. | also hosted alumni events.

Thailand — | visited Thailand in May, to be part of Christchurch Educated events in Bangkok and Chiang Mai. One of
our long-standing agents took me to visit three excellent schools and to set up agreements with these schools which
will be developed in 2020. In September representatives from these schools were invited by MGS to visit Christchurch
and our school and this helped to cement the relationships. Memorandums of Understanding have been signed with
all schools and we expect our first students in 2020. | also hosted alumni events.

Korea — Craig Utting travelled to Korea and represented MGS at the COEX Fair in Seoul. Craig hosted an Alumni event
in Seoul and was assisted by our Alumni at the fair. Craig was approached by a school in Korea to develop a programme
where the school will visit MGS for one term a year and fully integrate in our domestic classes. This programme has
been developed and the result is that an additional class was opened at Year 10 level for a trial in 2020 and the visiting
students will be spread through Year 10 classes. We are hoping to host about eighteen students from this school.

Japan — | visited Japan in September and October. | visited all our partner schools throughout the country and took
part in the Education New Zealand student fair and agent seminars. | was supported by NZ Education Support Centre
staff — Hirohide Ito, Yuko McKenzie and Hideko Yamamoto. My husband, Geoff, accompanied me on all of these visits
and was able to support me in speaking to staff, students and parents regarding academic studies at MGS.
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The events of the 15" March while extremely tragic have not seemed to impact us negatively for marketing purposes.
We did however have one short term group with us that needed to be in lockdown with staff for the afternoon, and
another group expected to arrive that evening, cancelled.

Louise Whitehead and Dean McKenzie visited agents in Auckland to inform them of changes to MGS procedures in
accordance with the updated Code of Practice.

Throughout the year we welcomed visitors to school. They included teachers from various countries, media companies
videoing our students and their experiences, parents and their children and many other agents.

Yolandy and | attended the NZIE Conference in Auckland in 2019. This is always a good opportunity to network with
others in the industry, hear from Government departments and have time to absorb important information not only
for our work, but for our students and our personal development as well.

Christchurch Educated has worked with the Tottori Prefecture’s Board of Education for a few years, hosting students
who have won their regional speech competitions. MGS and Christ’s College have hosted the students and staff when
they have visited Christchurch. We received our student from Tottori in March and the other was at Christ’s College
and at the end of the year Ivan Roentgen, a Year 12 boy was selected to represent MGS on the reciprocal visit,
accompanied by a boy from Christ’s College and their Japanese teacher, Mr Steve Everingham.

We again hosted the group from Japan who were interested in how New Zealand teach students with learning needs.
They were extremely impressed with the Primary Learning Centre and the main Learning Centre of the school.

MGS was approached by the University of Canterbury, along with three other schools namely, Burnside High School,
Christchurch Girls High School and Christchurch Boys High School, to be part of a programme where joint marketing
would take place in China to recruit students to high school and then pathway to the University of Canterbury after.
This project was developed throughout the year and funding was applied for to Education New Zealand and granted.
Christchurch NZ have also partnered with the group and a project manager was employed in the latter half of the year
to develop the programme. This programme will align with Canterbury wide requirements in line with the Super Nodes
project being developed by Christchurch NZ. Substantial amounts of work have been completed but the finer details
for all schools will be developed early in 2020 with the hope of recruiting the first students by the middle of the year.

NEXT STEPS

e Continue to diversify marketing so as not to be so dependent on the China market.
e Continue to develop programmes with the University of Canterbury for a pathway for Chinese students.

STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT
Senior College

In the latter half of 2018 we carried out a Cycle of Enquiry on the performance of international students in NCEA levels
1 — 3. This enquiry has highlighted some very interesting facts which were reported on in last year’s Annual Report.
One area that has been noted is the performance of MGS’s International students in comparison to the National
average and other schools in Christchurch. MGS students outperform all others by a considerable margin and the
school is by far the most successful in comparison to those reviewed. This is based on assisting International students
gain Level 3 NCEA as well as University Entrance.

Throughout 2019 the two Deans met weekly to review student needs and monitor progress. Assistance was put into
place where it was needed, which included additional tuition and regular mentoring meetings.
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Year 13 — 24 students

No. in Yr UE | Level 3 | Endorsements
level
entered for
NCEA
23| 11 17 | 6 Merit

Six students did not gain Level 3. One Year 13 boy had significant trauma through the year and will be repeating Level
3in 2020. For the remaining five, their academic progress was monitored throughout the year, extra time was given
to assist them and some accepted tutoring. It therefore indicates that these students were academically not able to
achieve at the high level required, or they did not require an NCEA qualification for entry to a tertiary institution in
their home country. They are only required to graduate from high school.

We are aware that late in 2019 nineteen students applied to the University of Canterbury and were granted provisional
acceptance.

Year 12 — 37 students through year

No. in Yr level Level 2 | Did not gain
entered for NCEA Level

28 20 8

On the whole we are pleased with the results achieved by our Year 12 students. In 2020 we will work closely with
those who did not achieve Level 2 but are aiming for Level 3 and University Entrance.

Year 11 — 26 students through year

No. in Yr level Level 1 | Did not gain
entered for NCEA Level

9 4 5

Year 11 is always our Senior College intake year and for the majority of International students, there is not the
requirement to gain Level 1 NCEA. This is the year where second language learners settle and try to adjust to the new
style of learning in a foreign language.

We had group of German students who were with us for Term 1 or half the year. The group took part in the Outdoor
Education programme run by Outdoor Education New Zealand (OENZ).

Students interested in going to the University of Canterbury took part in the Have a Go Day early in the year.

Debbie Smit continues to work with our students with lower level English ability on a one-on-one basis or in classes or
supporting teachers with a few of these learners in their classes.

NEXT STEPS
e Middle school students — review their progress and provide feedback to parents, agents and care providers
from about four weeks into term one and then on regular basis.
e Deans to continue weekly meetings to review and monitor student progress.
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Primary and Middle School

The International College again provided support for the Primary School by providing hours for an English Language
Learning Coordinator (Primary) and in maintaining the English Language Assistants hours. The majority of students
made good progress and families feeling that their children are well supported. The learning environment in the
Primary School is a real credit to the teaching staff and English Language team. Colleen and Catherine Moore met each
month to discuss the progress of the students and the needs of both students and staff.

There was an increase in numbers of long-term students for the Middle School and the demand for short-term places
continued. For some students’ short-term places have progressed to long term places or enrolment for 2020 again.
Unfortunately, there were a few students who started with us at the beginning of the year and then left at the end to
transfer to private schools within Christchurch. We have three international students who applied for domestic places
and were granted these for 2020.

PASTORAL

For the fourth year, the International College took all new students on an overnight orientation camp to Living Springs
at the end of the second week of school. We were joined by some of the International Ambassadors, who prepared
and ran activities for the group. This proved to be an excellent opportunity for the new students to connect with each
other and the Ambassadors.

The International Ambassador programme is growing from strength to strength. Rosemary Allison co-ordinated the
programme and had a wonderful group of ambassadors who performed their duties to an extremely high standard.
For 2020 Amanda Wright will be assisting Rosemary in coordinating events and liaising with the group.

The ambassador group again welcomed all new students to the school, assisted as buddies to short term groups,
welcomed guests to the school and took part in all the various activities put on by the International College. These
activities included assisting with the International BBQ, co-ordinating activities for International Festival and many
more. The International College also established a Host Programme where new students were welcomed by an existing
student of the same ethnicity. This helped with language barriers and understanding of school systems especially.

The International College had the annual BBQ in March to welcome all new students, families, homestay families and
care providers to the school. Regular other activities where held throughout the year including sausage sizzles and
celebrations.

The University of Canterbury provided a sausage sizzle for all international students. They brought a group of their
international students along, including some who had graduated from MGS.

The annual Queenstown trip for students took place in the April school holidays and the German students were taken
to Hanmer Springs for a weekend. There was a day trip to Hanmer for short term students and those on the Tottori
programe.

The International Festival took place in Term 2 and in September we held our International Food Festival.
International College staff carry out regular checks on the welfare of all international students. Included in this is the

student interviews in Terms 1 and 3 and the student surveys in Terms 2 and 4. We are seeing an increase in mental
health issues with students. Unfortunately, in 2019 we were unable to access school councilors for regular meetings
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with students and so we needed to look outside of school for support. This was concerning as we had two quite serious
situations that needed to be dealt with.

We continue to face problems with students spending much of their time outside of school online, mainly gaming with
friends. This does often disrupt their sleep, studies and life in general and requires ongoing input from our Deans and
residential caregivers and at times, the support of parents.

SHORT-TERM PROGRAMMES
During 2019 we welcomed 7 groups to the school:

St. Paul Girls High School - Korea

Hangzhou Changyan — China (connected to the Institute of Global Engagement)
Keio High School - Japan

Tottori —Japan

Kiaora Camp — Vietnam

Kwansei Gakuin — Japan

Yihe International Development School — China (2 groups)

We have lost some of our long-standing groups due to changes in government regulations in home countries and
gained a few groups. We are constantly reviewing and redesigning our programmes to best meet the needs of those
we work with.

We were expecting a group from Japan to arrive on the 15" March, but unfortunately due to the Mosque attack here
in Christchurch, they cancelled their visit.

The China New Zealand Global Youth Summit was held in Christchurch in July and MGS was part of the support for
this. Unfortunately, none of our students from the wider school were interested in taking part in this summit, which
was disappointing.

STAFFING

We appointed Leisha Ferguson and Cristina Huggings to short term programme teaching for 2019, with Jess Winyard
teaching the groups Maori language and culture.

Dean McKenzie moved to the head of e-Learning from the beginning of 2020 and was given leave from the end of
Term 3 in order to work on his post graduate studies. David Farmer was appointed to the position from the beginning
of 2020.

All staff undertook various forms of professional development, including workshops, conferences and seminars.
Rosemary Allison and | attended the ISANA NZ Conference in September where Rosemary received an award
recognizing her contribution to international education over many years.
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GENERAL

The changes to of the Education (Pastoral Care of International Students) Code of Practice 2016 (“Code”) were significant
and it required extensive review of all our documents to bring them in line with new requirements.

As Immigration New Zealand Online partners, we were audited in 2019. To date we have not received the results of
this audit.

While our numbers were lower than predicted for 2019, the year was a full and eventful year. We continue to be
blessed with excellent students and | would like to take this opportunity to thank the International College staff for
the commitment and hard work. | would also like to express how grateful we all are for the way in which all staff at
school care for our international students.

Colleen Steyn
Director International College
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Report to the Maori Community 2019

Ahuatanga, Hiranga, Manaakitanga mo te kororia o te Atua

MAORI PUPIL NUMBERS AND MOVEMENT

In 2019 there were 94 pupils enrolled at the start of the year and 90 pupils enrolled
at the end of the year who identified themselves as Maori. This represented approximately
7.0 % of the total school roll. These pupils identified with a range of iwi from broad geographic
regions.

MAORI PUPIL ROLL 2019
Maori Males Females
Year 1 0 5
Year 2 3 1
Year 3 1 2
Year 4 3 1
Year 5 0 3
Year 6 1 1
Year 7 2 2
Year 8 3 5
Year 9 3 0
Year 10 7 4
Year 11 5 12
Year 12 9 9
Year 13 3 5
Curriculum

PRIMARY SCHOOL Teaching of Maori within the Primary School

Te reo Maori, and te ao Maori are more than a curriculum area; they are a component of who we are as New
Zealanders. Part of the challenge at Middleton Grange is to integrate the importance of this into many cultures and to
align beliefs with our faith. Less was achieved in Te Reo Maori in the Primary School during 2019 due to staffing
challenges. In-class and Team programmes continued as normal integrating reo and tasks such as making kites for
the World Vision Art Exhibition. Joelle Goodall has also worked with both Year 3 classes teaching waiata.

Matua Steve Reid continued to take Kapa Haka for weekly sessions. This group is compulsory for all Year 4 pupils and
voluntary for those in Years 5 and 6. The venue this year enabled us to take as many Year 4-6 tamariki who could
attend. Consequently, we had the largest group ever of 90 participants, and used every boys’ uniform we had in
stock. The group performed difficult items extremely well. Congratulations to Melenaite Havea and Sisilia Misa who
were the top placed female leaders, and to Moala Sikaleti who placed second in the male leader category. Another
highlight was performing with the Senior Kapahaka in the Mihi Whakatau for Mr Vannoort.

Ongoing foci for 2020 include:

assisting staff who have recently immigrated to develop their confidence in Te Reo Maori and basic tikanga, ongoing
resourcing of staff to provide support and development including the teaching of Te Reo in Years 1-6, continuing to
reinforce correct pronunciation of Te Reo by staff and students and extending our fluency with Maori protocol to the
point where we can incorporate formalities like a Mihi Whakatau within our staff and students’ skillset. In support, Mrs
Thompson has been appointed to the within school Kahui Ako position and Natalie Downs will be teaching 2 periods
Years 2-6.
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PRIMARY SCHOOL PRIZE-GIVING KAPAHAKA AWARDS

Female leader: Melenaite Havea
Melenaite has been a strong and confident leader this year. At the Tuhono
Kapahaka Festival her skill was acknowledged by being named top female
leader.

Female Leader: Sisilia Misa
Sisilia has been a competent and capable leader. She hasn't sought out the
limelight but has led by example. Sisilia is confident in her own cultural
heritage and uses her ability to set a high standard of performance in
kapahaka.

Male Leader: Moala Sikaleti
Moala has led the haka with mana, humility and self-assurance. He has taken
the Middleton Grange Primary School performance to a new level.

MIDDLE SCHOOL
In the Middle School Te Reo Maori is taught across all Year levels.
Year 7 and 8 pupils - it is a compulsory subject for 2 hours for 16 weeks.
Year 9 and 10 - the course is a full year option.
2019 Pupil Numbers:
Year 9 Maori 7 pupils
Year 10 Maori 11 pupils

SENIOR COLLEGE
In the Senior College, Te Reo Maori is offered across all Year levels as an optional class.
2019 Pupil Numbers:

Year 11 Maori 9 pupils

Year 12 Maori 6 pupils

Year 13 Maori 5 pupils

STAFFING

Whaea Tamara Rochford-Kerr is of Raukawa ki Wharepuhunga descent from the Tainui waka, teaching Years 1-13 Te
Reo Maori and was the Curriculum Leader/teacher for Term 1. Hakui Surin teaches Year 7 - 11 Te Reo Maori. While
Pakeha, she is Ngakau Maori with a particular love of Kai Tahu reo and tikanga. She comes from a Kura Kaupapa
Maori (Maori immersion schools) and second language learning background. Matua Pairama Moon is of Ngati
Porou/Nga Puhi oku iwi. Natalie Down and Lucy Denne teach Year 7-8 compulsory Te Reo Maori. Matua Steve Reid
continues in his role as Kapa Haka tutor. Other staff who identify as Maori are Nick Pomare, Ngai Tahu (Year 5
teacher) Amanda Wright, Ngai Tahu (International Homestay Manager) and Kristy Neill.

KAPAHAKA and Tuhono Cultural Festival

Te Roopu Kapa Haka o Miritana (Middleton Senior Kapa Haka Group) had
another year of growth and learning in many aspects of Maori performing
arts in 2019. Growth came by new members joining the group which has
kept our numbers above 60 and learning through new waiata and haka.
Matua Steve taught a new medley song of Iwi anthems singing the first verse
of each tribal groups most popular song and stringing them all together. New
assistant tutor Amiria Reid, and the group leaders Jade Tau, and Tai
Carranceja also introduced the Stan Walker song Whakamoemiti
(Praise)which they arranged and taught to the group. Both of these items
were a hit in all of the other groups’ performances through-out the year and
the medley was the winning action song at the Tuhono festival. Tuhono is
always the Kapa Haka highlight as we get to see other groups perform and
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meet the performers. We were not the overall winners this year but we were still very happy with our performance.
Our keen and powerful performers really help lift the wairua (spirit) of our group. It's been another good year and we
look forward to including our new te reo Maori teacher into our group

SPECIAL CHARACTER AND CURRICULUM HIGHLIGHTS

We began the year with Whaea Tamara leading the curriculum area and Chantelle Gribben as the Maori Leader. At
the end of term one Whaea moved to a position as a Mana whenua Education advisor for Matauraka Mahaanui (A

Ministry of Education and Ngai Tahu collaboration) focusing on Cultural responsiveness and Ngai Tahu values. We

were sad to see Whaea go but we now have a direct connection point to Ngai Tahu for Christian Schools. We pray
God'’s blessing over Tamara for her future mahi.

Term 2 the Kapahaka group were invited to lead the Mihi Whakatau for the 24/7 national Youth Workers’ Conference
held at La Vida. The group performed in front of 500 Christian youth workers from throughout New Zealand.

The start of Term 3 saw Mr Vannoort welcomed with a Mihi Whakatau where Papanui staff and pupils officially
handed Mr Vannoort over as the new principal of Middleton Grange School.

Term 3 heralded the arrival of Te Wiki o te Reo Maori. Chantelle shared a devotion that linked to our school theme of
Turangawaewae — Standing place and that we are all have a place to stand and are one in Christ Jesus- Galatians
3:28. The Year 12 pupils including, Renee White, Amy Carpenter, Olivia Oakley, Jade Tau-Manuel, Kristyn Wallace,
Bella Hikuroa and Sarai Chapman took real leadership with photos displayed in another article. The week culminated
in the Kapahaka competition, which has morphed into a celebration of Tikanga Maori at Middleton. Matua Etana
shared how the haka served as another cultural expression of worshipping God similar to how the singers went out
ahead of Jehoshaphat’s army pronouncing the “Lord is good and his love endures forever”2 Chronicles 20. The
school haka lyrics quote our school verse from Psalm 36:9 M3 tou marama, ka kite ai matou i te marama. In God'’s
Light we see the light.

Throughout the year we welcomed visiting international groups from China, Thailand and Vietnam as well as the
Cornerstone Middleton ECE staff and children.

One of the last events in the Te Ao Maori calendar for the combined Senior Kapahaka group was Tuhono- Kapahaka
festival organised by our Kapahaka tutor Matua Steve Reid. Middleton won best use of musical instruments and the
waiata a ringa (action song).

Later in term 3, after advertising for 6 months we appointed Matua Pairama Moon to the Kaiako Maori position,
starting in term 4. We are very blessed to have Pairama join us at Middleton with the wealth of experience he brings
of his time at Wainoni Primary and Kingslea - Te Oranga Residential School and as Youth Pastor at Celebration
Centre.

We also welcome Jade Tau-Manuel as the Maori leader for 2020 as well as Tai Carranceja and Bella Hikuroa as
Kapahaka leaders.

Ke amorangi ki mua, Ko te hapai o ki muri, The leaders at the front and the workers at the back. This
whakatauki has been evidenced by many of the workers taking leadership roles and then also working in the
background as well to help people have meaningful encounters with Te Ao Maori in a Christian context.
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ENGAGEMENT WITH SCHOOL AND SPECIFIC SUPPORT FOR MAORI PUPILS

All pupils are cared for:
Years 1 — 8, through their classroom teacher.
Years 9 — 13, through the pastoral networks which include teachers, Deans, Counsellors, Heads of School and Senior
Leaders.

In February the annual Whanau Hui was held and all Maori families were invited to attend. Approximately 80 parents,
teachers and children were present at this hui and shared kai together. Whaea Tamara warmly welcomed all new
students to the school. In June, we had the second Whanau hui with approximately 35 parents and children
attending. The 2018 Maori Report was tabled, and there was much discussion and sharing of ideas.

ATTENDANCE

The school monitors attendance daily and provides a report to the Board of Trustees on a termly basis. Attendance
by pupils is crucial to their academic success and engagement with staff and pupils. There are systems in place
whereby the Deans identify patterns of absences and follow up on these. Attendance overall for Whanau Group was
89.7% [90.1% 2018] and the overall attendance for the school was 92.4 [92.0% 2018]. The small percentage of
unjustified absences for Maori pupils at 2.3% [2.5% 2018] was slightly larger than the school overall at 1.9% [1.9%
2018]. Justified absences for Maori pupils was 6.8% while the school overall was 4.7%.

Absence largely falls into two groups — explained (parent note or contact) and unexplained. Every effort is made to
contact parents by the School’s Early Notification Service on the day of absence. Within the ‘explained’ group of
absences, not all are ‘justified’ reasons for absence. Justified absences according to the Ministry of Education are for
sickness, bereavement and exceptional family circumstances. A code has been added that identifies absence from
school for a holiday during term time and will be coded as ‘G’. To assist with monitoring the attendance of our Maori
pupils, the Assistant Head of Senior College provides the Associate Principal with an end of term attendance report
and analysis for discussion and action if required.

DISCIPLINE
The school monitors and tracks discipline at two levels — serious incidents that lead to Stand-Down or Suspensions,
through to lower levels that lead to detentions and restorative conferences.

Stand-Downs and Suspensions

In 2019 there were no suspensions for the whole school. There were 4 Stand-Downs, 1 of whom was a Maori pupil.
All pupils returning from Stand-Down or Suspension are given counselling as of right when they return to school and
are supported by their Dean and Head of School. These statistics do not give us any cause for concern for our Maori

pupils.
Detentions

Detentions are either lunch-time detentions (minor discipline) or after-school for more serious discipline. All
detentions are electronically recorded in the pastoral notes. Examination of patterns in relation to detentions does not
highlight any concerns for a majority of our Maori pupils in both the Middle School and the Senior College for 2019.
This is carefully monitored by Mrs Gomez in the Middle school/Senior College Administration area.

Achievement
PRIMARY SCHOOL ACHIEVEMENT

Primary staff keep comprehensive records of achievement and progress for every Maori pupil. Parents are warmly
invited to meet and discuss their child’s achievement with their teacher
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MAORI ACHIEVEMENT INFORMATION

Maori Reading 2019 Maori Writing 2019

12 16

14

10
12

2 2 .
0 [ |
0

I 1 ) 3 1 2 3

Above expectation At expectation Below expectation

Above expectation At expectation Below expectation
5% 79% 16%

26% 58% 16%

Students who identify as Maori are monitored
by their teachers and the Class Review
process identifies any who are at risk in their
learning. Teachers and our SENCO decide on
appropriate support/interventions when
needed.

The 2019 summaries (see attached graphs)
show that Maori students are achieving at
about the same level as non- Maori in Reading
and Writing. In Maths there are a larger number
; > s below the curriculum expectation for their class
level, 6 in total. These children are being
carefully monitored as indicated above.

Maori Maths 2019
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Above expectation At expectation Below expectation
42% 26% 32%

There are 3 Maori students who are identified in the *below expectation’ group for Reading Writing and Maths.
Considerable support is being provided to assist them in their learning and to help them make good progress in
relation to their peers

Middle School Achievement
YEAR 7 4 Pupils

English: Reading

Level All Year 7 | Maori Pupils
Pupils (%)
(%)
Above Expectations 44 25
At Expectation 39 50
Below Expectation 17 25
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Mathematics:
Level All Year 7 | Maori Pupils
Pupils (%)
(%)
Above Expectations 54 25
At Expectation 26 50
Below Expectation 20 25
English: Writing
Level All Year 7 | Maori Pupils
Pupils (%)
(%)
Above Expectations 19 0
At Expectation 38 50
Below Expectation 43 50
YEAR 8 8 Pupils
English: Reading
Level All Year 8 | Maori Pupils
Pupils (%)
(%)
Above Expectations 1 13
At Expectation 68 63
Below Expectation 31 24
Mathematics:
Level All Year 8 | Maori Pupils
Pupils (%)
(%)
Above Expectations 10 0
At Expectation 73 63
Below Expectation 17 37
English: Writing
Level All Year 8 | Maori Pupils
Pupils (%)
(%)
Above Expectations 7 13
At Expectation 70 50
Below Expectation 23 37

YEAR 9 and 10:

In Years 9 and 10, academic results are shown in Science, English and Mathematics Curriculum Areas as these 3
subjects have all pupils included in their analysis. All other Curriculum Leaders conduct their own analysis where they
have Maori pupils in their classes. This analysis is shown in the 2018 Curriculum Area Report. For the standards-
based assessments, the academic results below are calculated on the basis of how many standards were passed by
Maori pupils, not how many Maori pupils passed a standard. For example, looking at Year 10 English, there are 6
Achievement Standards available. For the Maori pupils in Year 10, 14% of the standards assessed were at ‘Not
Achieved’, and 16% of the standards assessed were at 'Excellence’ level.
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YEAR 9: 3 Pupils

In Year 9 pupils should be at or above level 5b by the
end of the year

Science:
4 topics per pupil Assessed to Curriculum
Levels
Level All Year 9 Pupils | Maori Pupils
(%) (%)
6+ 0 0
5p-5a 40 8
5b 43 75
4p-4a 17 17
4b and below 0 0
English: 8 topics per pupll
Level All Year 9 Maori Pupils
Pupils (%) (%)
6+ 1 0
5p-5a 19 4
5b 23 21
4p-4a 46 54
4b and below 11 21

Mathematics: 6 topics per pupil

Level All Year 9 Pupils | Maori Pupils
(%) (%)
6+ 2 0
5p-5a 29 25
5b 23 25
4p-4a 34 38
4b and below 12 12

YEAR 10: 11 Pupils

Science:

7 Achievement Standards available per

pupil

% Passed at: All Year 10 Maori Pupils
Pupils (%) (%)

Excellence 16 4

Merit 37 29

Achieved 37 51

Not Achieved 10 16

English:

6 Achievement Standards available per pupil

% Passed at: All Year 10 Maori Pupils
Pupils (%) (%)
Excellence 16 11
Merit 31 17
IAchieved 38 52
Not Achieved 14 19
Mathematics:

7 Achievement Standards available per pupil

% Passed at: All Year 10 Maori Pupils (%)
Pupils (%)

Excellence 22 9

Merit 40 46

Achieved 32 37

Not Achieved 6 8

MIDDLE SCHOOL PRIZE-GIVING AWARDS

Year 7/8 Excellence and Leadership in Maori

(The Audrey Phillips Award — Te Taurapa)

Year 9/10 Excellence and Leadership in Maori

(Te Ariki o te Rangimarie (God of Peace)

First in Te Reo Maori

Year 9
Year 10

Emily Pearson
Joshua Bedggood

Jarrah Tau-Manuel

Jack Major
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Level 1 NCEA: 17 Pupils

88% Maori pupils gained Level 1 NCEA.

80% Merit Endorsement
6% Excellence Endorsement

94% gained level 1 and level 2 numeracy

100% gained level 1 literacy

Level 2 NCEA: 18 Pupils
94% gained Level 2 NCEA
18% Merit Endorsement
6% Excellence Endorsement
83% UE Literacy

Level 3 NCEA: 8 Pupils
75% Gained Level 3 NCEA

33% gained UE Entrance (out of the 6 who gained level

3)

50% Merit Endorsement (out of the 6 who gained level

3)
0% Excellence Endorsement
88% UE literacy

SENIOR COLLEGE PRIZE-GIVING AWARDS

First in Te Reo Maori
Year 11
Year 12
Year 13

Te Ao Marama Maori Award
[The Miles Kaukau Trophy]

Maia Keepa and Beth Waretini
Amy Carpenter
Chantelle Gribben

Jade Tau-Manuel

Year 11 NCEA Level 1 - Maori
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Literacy and Numeracy
All pupils are required to gain 10 credits at Level 1 in each of the Literacy and Numeracy Standards.

100% Maori pupils gained Level 1 Literacy
95% Maori pupils gained Level 1 Numeracy

For University Entrance, pupils need to gain 10 credits in Literacy. They can achieve these credits in Year 12 or, if
needed, in Year 13. In 2018, 67% Maori pupils gained UE Literacy in Year 12 and 73% Maori pupils gained UE
Literacy by the end of Year 13.

Destination of Maori Learners

Of the 11 Maori pupils in Year 12 and Year 13 who are leaving MGS, 3 will take a gap year, 1 is going to the School of
Music at Hagley, 4 plan to go to university (1 Otago, 1 UC, 2 unknown), 3 are working towards apprenticeships (1 at
ARA in a pre-apprenticeship course, 1 is applying for electrical and 1 is in construction).

Events And Programmes Through The Careers Department
There were many opportunities offered to our Maori
students through the Careers Department and many
attended events to find out more about possible future
vocational pathways:
e Te Kura Correspondence School
Year 12: 7 started, 6 ended
Year 13: 6 started, 4 ended
e Purchase of 2 laptops for the above
e Ka Hao Te Rangatahi course at ARA
2 students attended for a term
e Maori students on STAR, Dual Pathway and Gateway
courses:
one attended free Techtorium Computer Engineering
course in the holidays and did an Outdoor Education
and Sustainability Course at ARA.
e Attended Year 11 Ekea Day at University of
Canterbury, 25 and 26 March
e Attended Year 12 Ekea Day at University of
Canterbury, 2 August
e Attended Year 10 Ekea Day at University of Canterbury, 6 November
e Course Selection evening — invited Maori Medium, College of Early Childhood Education
e Te Rito Maioha Early Childhood NZ

Learning Support

Years1-6

In 2019, six Maori pupils were identified by their classroom teachers as being at risk in their learning. All of
these pupils were on the Learning Support register and were supported by interventions at the Learning
Centre (STEPS literacy software, Maths support, Fine Motor, Reading Recovery, Reading support), by
Teacher Aides in the classroom or other within school services (Counsellor). Five of these pupils were also
supported by external agencies (Educational Psychologist, Occupational Therapist, Resource Teacher of the
Deaf, Resource Teacher of Learning and Behaviour and Resource Teacher of Literacy).
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Years 7-13

In 2019 The Senior Learning Centre worked with 18 Maori pupils from years 7-13.

Year 8 (3 pupils). Two are involved in literacy support groups, individual in class support and one pupil who
has support with assistive technology for hearing.

Year 9 (3 pupils). Two of these pupils are placed in English classes where a Support teacher is present to
help and guide. One pupil is placed in the lower streamed maths class where a Support teacher is also
present to assist pupils.

Year 10 (3 pupils). Two pupils placed in English class that had a small POD of pupils needing assistance. A
Support teacher is present to assist these pupils. One pupil is in the lower streamed maths class where a
Support teacher is present to assist pupils.

Year 11 (3 pupils) Three pupils were placed in the English Communications class where there is a Support
teacher to assist with their learning.

Year 12 (6 pupils) Five of these pupils have Special Assessment Conditions for all assessments. Three are
in the English Communications class where a Support teacher is present to assist. Four pupils are involved
in the Senior Study Support Class having four periods a week assistance with all their course work.

REFLECTIONS AND HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2019

General

The mihi whakatau to welcome our new principal.
The appointment of Matua Pai to the te Reo
teaching position.

Many staff working on confidently delivering their
mihi linking identity to place, people and faith to
establish connections.

The re-writing of our Treaty of Waitangi Policy to
include commitment to bi-culturalism and the
principles of the treaty, namely Partnership:
working together, understanding differences,
listening and respecting each other’s ideas,
Participation: enabling every pupil, both Maori
and non-Maori to experience equal opportunities,
and Protection, looking after Maori knowledge,
values and ideas.

Increasing numbers attending our whanau Hui and
enjoying the sharing of kai together

The successful school Haka Competition for the
second year.

The new Year 7/8a Kapa Haka ropu.

The outstanding results regarding equity; MGS is in the top 3 schools nationwide with Maori cademic
success being equal to non-Maori in STEM subjects [Science, Technology and Maths]. Represenatives from
the Ministry of Education met with the Associate Principal Curriculum and the three Curriculum Leaders of
the STEM subjects to discuss these results
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Staff Professional Development

School theme- “Turangawaewae-Belonging”.

While E-Learning was our whole-school PD focus for
2019, many staff undertook professional development to
enhance their bi-cultural practice both within the school
and with outside providers;

Level 1 and 2 te Reo Maori at Te Wananga Aoteoroa
Post-Grad certificate in Applied Learning through Mindlab
Bi-cultural module through the Ministry of Health
Beginner te Reo Maori course through Ara

On-line te Reo course through Memrise

Year 7/8 Team undertook Bi-cultural PD through the year
led by Matua Etana

Many staff carried out the Education Perfect Maori
Language course through the year

Increased confidence and use of mihi, karakia and waiata

Future Focus

For 2020, Mrs Rebecca Thompson has been appointed to
a CENCOL Kahui Ako within school position promoting bi-
cultural practice. Matua Etana has been appointed to the
Kahui Ako across school’s position promoting Bi-cultural
practice within Middleton and across all CENCOL schools.
[CENCOL- Christian Education Network Community of
Learning]

Continuing to investigate a Korowai/Maori cloak for use
at MGS- a scriptural foundation for including/integrating
tikanga Maori while upholding our special character.

Staff, parent, pupil and iwi consultation will be required

Megan Cassidy
Associate Principal
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PASIFIKA STUDENT NUMBERS

In 2019 there were 51 students enrolled at the start of the year who identified as Pasifika. This represented
approximately 4 % of the total school roll. These students have heritage from: Samoa, Fiji, Cook Islands, Solomon
Islands, Vanuatu and Tonga.

PASIFIKA STUDENT ROLL 2019

Pasifika Males Females
Year 1 1 0
Year 2 1 0
Year 3 1 2
Year 4 0 0
Year 5 1 1
Year 6 2 3
Year 7 1 1
Year 8 1 1
Year 9 4 3
Year 10 1 4
Year 11 6 5
Year 12 1 6
Year 13 2 3
SENIOR COLLEGE

In the Senior College, external and internal standards were offered in TONGAN across NCEA Level 1, 2 and 3 through
a partnership with Christchurch Boys’ High School. Six students completed these standards and gained 7 Excellences
and 5 Merits across Listening, Reading and Speaking. NCEA students who participated in the Pasifika Cultural Group
were awarded NCEA Dance Standard credits according to their level. These assessments were moderated and found
to be consistent with the required standard. Eight Pasifika students attended the Pasifika Careers Expo at Ara in June
with a select number taking part in the UCMe XL Holiday programme, where extra NCEA tuition was given by
University of Canterbury students. Three students attended the Pasifika Leaders’ breakfast at the Christchurch City
Council where Helena Tulia MC'd the event. Eight students attended the Pasifika Rise event at Ara where they
experienced workshops and talks about different courses at Ara. I took four students to see a Pasifika film, “Vai,” at
Haeata Community College. It was a collection of six interwoven stories from women on various Pacific islands, and
was screened at the Berlin Film Festival. Two of the actresses spoke to the audience after the screening.
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PASIFIKA CULTURAL GROUP

This was open to all students from Year 7 to 13, and 29 students were part of the group in 2019. It was encouraging
to see students of European, African, Filipino and Pasifika descent joining the group and learning about Pasifika
culture. We were fortunate to have Lapana Soli, from St Paul’s Church, teaching the students the Samoan dance, and
Dara Nickel doing the drumming. Lei Mohi in Year 13 taught the Tongan and Hawaiian dances. Practices for Polyfest
were intense but rewarding, and the final product was well-performed. Students who participated in Polyfest were
awarded a badge at a Principal’s Assembly. The Pasifika group also performed for the Primary School in June, and
Pasifika primary students were invited over the Year 7 to 13 assembly when they performed there in March

HIGHLIGHTS 2019

POLYFEST

The Polyfest Leaders chose the fabric and the design of the new outfits. On 13" March we had a Fia Fia Night in the
Staffroom where fifty relatives and friends came to watch the Samoan, Hawaiian, Tongan and African dances. There
was a supper provided and the performers and audience were happy and appreciative. The initial Polyfest event on
March 16™ was postponed due to the Mosque Attacks of March 15%, and the venue had to be changed to The Riding
for the Disabled Arena at the Canterbury Agricultural Park the following term. But our Polyfest group bravely
performed their dances at assembly on 18™ March and the Pasifika Leader, Helena Tulia, prayed for all victims and
families involved in the Mosque attack. It was a great show of cultural diversity that seemed appropriate, timely and
uplifting for all. We were also able to honour our dance tutors and musicians.

SPACPAC SPEECH CONTEST
Two students participated in the Junior and Senior section of the SPACPAC Speech contest this year, which was held
at Hornby High School.

TRADITIONAL PASIFIKA SCHOOL WEAR

The uniform committee approved a proposal that Pasifika boys Years 7 to 13 be allowed to wear black ie faitagas
(formal lava lavas) with their school shirts and blazers. Black socks to match these ie faitagas were also allowed and I
ordered the garments for the Pasifika boys who indicated they would like to wear them at school.

SUPREME SPACPAC AWARDS

We were delighted that Middleton Grange students received SPACPAC Awards at this ceremony at Christchurch Boys’
High School. Lei Mohi, Helena Tulia and Sioeli Ofa were prayed for as Year 13 Pasifika leaders of the school, and Sioeli
Ofa, Helena Tulia and Malia Lenati received High Achiever awards for having the top NCEA Level 2 results at
Middleton Grange School 2018.

BIZ NINJA CHALLENGE

This year we entered one team in this challenge, which was held at St Paul’s Trinity Hall. Lei Mohi, Helena Tulia,
Melelupe Filai and Sioeli Ofa made a presentation about creating a workshop to help teachers incorporate Pasifika
content into their curriculum areas. They won first place and were fortunate enough to each receive $100 gift
vouchers.

PASIFIKA LEADERSHIP TEAM

Lei Mohi, Sioeli Ofa, Ah-Li Fenika and Helena Tulia showed great leadership in many areas of the school and had
success in sporting, cultural and academic and community events outlined in this report. Helena organised the
Pasifika group to sing a farewell song for Richard Vanderpyl when he left Middleton and another selection of Samoan,
Tongan and Fijian songs to welcome Mike Vannoort as the new Principal. The leadership team was very supportive of
the Pasifika community when Zeek Loua passed away in April. They showed real compassion and resilience in the face
of a very sad and unexpected death.
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PASIFIKA LEADERSHIP DAY

This inaugural event was held at La Vida on 21st August. All Year 9 to 13 students from our Christian Schools Network
were invited. We were delighted that 6 students from Christchurch Adventist School, 5 from Hillview and 1 from
Aidanfield attended, as well as 25 of our own Middleton students. The theme was GRIT and Kerryn Malcolm lead a
series of activities and then spoke about getting up when you are knocked down and finding the person who ‘sings
your song’. Two speakers could not attend at the last minute but fortunately we still had a recorded message from ex
student, Tiresa Perelini, and Josiah Tuala spoke passionately about using opportunities that are available, finding your
values and looking at your place in the future. We provided morning tea and then pizzas for lunch and the Principal
and Associate Principal joined us.

SERVICE AND MISSION TRIP TO TONGA

There was a trip to Tonga in July 2019 with 3 staff members and 15 Year 12 students. At the Alonga Centre they
interacted with adults with disabilities and at the Acts Community School and the YWAM base, the team got stuck into
painting the buildings. Gardening was completed at the Mango Centre. All the students were blown away by the
hospitality, gratitude and friendliness of the Tongan people and loved serving the communities there. They interacted
extensively with the children, developed their confidence, listening and leadership skills and grew their trust in each
other and their faith in God.

School Support

All our students are cared for via:

e Years1-8 | through their classroom teacher
e Years9-13 | through the pastoral networks which include teachers, Deans, Counsellors and
Heads of School.
e Year7-13 | six Pasifika students received learning support from the Learning Centre
Attendance

The school tracks attendance daily and provides a report to the Board of Trustees on a termly basis. Attendance by
students is crucial to their academic success and engagement with staff and students. It has been said the 80% of
success is being in class. There are systems in place whereby the deans identify patterns of absences and follow up
on these. In 2019, we had no truancy concerns in the Primary School, Middle School and Senior College for Pasifika
students. Attendance overall for Pasifika was 91.4% . The overall attendance for the school was 92.4%. This shows
us that we have no cause for concern at Middleton currently.

Absence largely falls into two groups — explained (parent note or contact) and unexplained. Every effort is made to

contact parents by the School’s Attendance Officer on the day of absence. Within the ‘explained’ group of absences,
not all are ‘justified’ reasons for absence. Justified absences according to the Ministry of Education are for sickness,

bereavement and exceptional family circumstances. A new code has been added that identifies absence from school
for a holiday during term time and will be coded as 'Q".

Discipline
The school tracks discipline at two levels — serious incidents that lead to Stand-Down or Suspensions, through to
lower levels that lead to detentions.

Stand-Downs and Suspensions
In 2019 there were no suspensions or stand-downs for Pasifika students.

Detentions

Detentions are either lunch-time detentions (minor discipline) or after-school for more serious discipline. All
detentions are electronically recorded in the pastoral notes. Examination of patterns in relation to detentions does not
highlight any concerns for Pasifika students in both the Middle School and the Senior College
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Primary School Achievement

Primary staff keep comprehensive records of achievement and progress for every Pasifika student. Pasifika students
who need extra support in reading and writing, receive it more intensively up to Year 4. After this they receive
Learning Support for any language difficulty. Parents are warmly invited to meet and discuss their child’s achievement
with the relevant staff member.

PASIFIKA ACHIEVEMENT INFORMATION - Primary School 2019
e Male: 6
e Female: 6

The following charts show distributions of students Above, At & Below expectation

Pasifika Reading 2019
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0 — | I
Orange: No. of pupils ABOVE expectation Orange: No. of pupils AT expectation Orange: No. of pupils BELOW expectation
Grey: the % of Pasifika pupils ABOVE Grey: the % of Pasifika pupils AT Grey: the % of Pasifika pupils BELOW
| 3 5 4
[ ] 25% 42% 33%
Pasifika Writing 2019
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Pasifika Math 2019
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Middle School Achievement

It was pleasing to see a number of the Pasifika students receiving awards at the Middle School Prizegiving
Ceremonies. Jorja Davison received and award for Scripture, Sama Mara received the Year 7 Athletics cup, Ana
Togiaso and Annette Patea received Service Awards, Brooklyn Davison was first in Food and Technology and Moriyah
Karati received the Year 9 Citizenship Award.

Year 7 and 8

There are only 2 students in each level who are known to their teachers and they are aware of their achievement.
Statistically as a group this data can be misleading, or make the students easily identifiable, and so the percentages
are not included here.

Years 9 and 10,

Academic results are shown in English, Mathematics and Science Curriculum Areas as these 3 subjects have all
students included in their analysis. All other Curriculum Leaders conduct their own analysis where they have Pasifika
students in their classes. This analysis is shown in the 2019 Curriculum Area Report. For the standards-based
assessments, the academic results below are calculated on the basis of how many standards were passed by Pasifika
students, not how many Pasifika students passed a standard. For example, looking at Year 10 Science, there are 6
Standards available. For the Pasifika students in Year 10, 54% of the standards assessed were at ‘Achieved’, and
40% of the standards assessed were at ‘Merit’ level

YEAR 9: 7 STUDENTS

Science: 4 topics per student. Assessed to Curriculum Levels
e In Year 9 students should be at or above level 5b by the end of the year

Level All Year 9 Students (%) Pasifika Students (%)
6+ 0 0
5p-5a 40 29
5b 43 50
4p-4a 17 21
4b and below 0 0

English: 6 topics were assessed to Curriculum Levels 2019

% Passed at: All Year 9 Students (%) Pasifika Students (%)
6+ 1 0
5p — b5a 19 6
5b 23 31
4p -4a 46 47
4b and below 11 16

Mathematics: 6 topics per student. Assessed to Curriculum Levels
e In Year 9 students should be at or above level 5b by the end of the year

Level All Year 9 Students (%) Pasifika Students (%)
6+ 2 0
5p-5a 29 10
5b 23 31
4p-4a 34 40
4b and below 12 19
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YEAR 10: 4 STUDENTS

Science: 7 Standards available per student

% Passed at: All Year 10 Students (%) Pasifika Students (%)
Excellence 16 3
Merit 37 40
Achieved 37 54
Not Achieved 10 3

English: 6 Standards available per student
% Passed at: All Year 10 Students (%) Pasifika Students (%)
Excellence 16 4
Merit 31 50
Achieved 38 43
Not Achieved 14 3

Mathematics: 7 Standards available per student

% Passed at:

All Year 10 Students (%)

Pasifika Students (%)

Excellence 22 3
Merit 40 66
Achieved 32 28

Not Achieved 6 3

Senior College Achievement

NCEA LEVEL 1-3

All students are required to gain 80 credits to pass NCEA at the appropriate Level 1,2 and 3. Students require 10

credits at Level 1 Literacy and Numeracy.

For University Entrance, students need to gain 10 credits in Level 2 Literacy. They can achieve these credits in Year

12 or, if needed, in Year 13.

Level 1: 11 Students
91.7% of our Pasifika students passed level 1
70% gained a Merit endorsement

Level 2: 5 Students

100% of our Pasifika students passed level 2.
14% gained Excellence endorsement

28% gained Merit endorsement

86% gained university entrance literacy

Level 3: 5 Students

100% of our Pasifika students passed level 3
20% gained a Merit endorsement

80% gained university entrance
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The achievement of our Pasifika students at Middleton Grange School compares favourably nationally, especially at
Level 3.

NCEA Middleton Grange National Decile 8 to 10 Schools National
(Pasifika) (Pasifika) (Pasifika) (all ethnicities)
Level 1 91.7 58 68 78
Level 2 100 69 79 83
Level 3 100 58 63 75
University Entrance 80 27 41 62

At Senior College Prizegiving Winnie Palamo won the Junior Girls" Athletics trophy

Destination of Pasifika Learners

Of the five Year 13 strudents leaving school, one intends going to University of Canterbury, one would like to have a
gap year travelling and playing sport, then study Politics, two are going to Ara and one to the New Zealand School of
Tourism.

KAHUI AKO POSITION

Nicole Bailey was fortunate enough to be given an ‘in school’ position and some extra time to focus on “Raising
Pasifika Achievement” in 2019. She focused on the Pasifika Leadership Day (which was mentioned earlier in the
report), Raising NCEA Level 2 Pasifika Achievement from 65% to 80%, presenting a workshop to all staff to unpack
the cultural competencies framework for teachers of Pacific learners as outlined in "Tapasa” and developing Pasifika
resources. The Leadership Day went well, the Level 2 pass rate was 100%, there were many discussions with staff
about cultural competencies following on from the presentation and Nicole ordered some more resources for the
library.

AREA SCHOOL TEACHER'S SABBATICAL

In Term 4 of 2019 Nicole Bailey had a sabbatical and the focus was the introduction of a Pacific Studies Course.
Although we offer Pasifika students dance credits through Polyfest dance assessments, and the opportunity to learn
Tongan at Christchurch Boy’s High on a Friday afternoon and Samoan through te Kura Correspondence, there is a
need for a cohesive, year-long Pacific Studies Course, that is fully integrated into the timetable. There is a wealth of
knowledge in our Pasifika community and it would bring school and home closer, bringing speakers in. Nicole visited
schools already offering this course, interviewed students and community leaders and looked at the NCEA review as
well as our own school culture results. A course outline was then drafted. Through a Pacific Studies programme,
Pasifika cultural knowledge, expertise and skills would be recognized. Students would choose topics they are
interested in and the teacher could implement pedagogical approaches that are effective for Pasifika learners. Nicole
will now submit an application to start this course to the Curriculum Committee in Term 2

Nicole Bailey
Pasifika Co-Ordinator/Gateway/Careers

In Your Light Shall We See Light  Psalm 36:9 2019 Annual Report Page 91

Character, Excellence, Service, for the Glory of God



Middleton Grange School |
Annual Report 2019 |

Strategic Goals Analysis of Variance 2019

NAG 1 Curriculum
o  See attached Analysis of Variance reports

NAG 2 Self Review

e Complete 2019 Board of Trustees cycle of self-review
e Completed

e  Consult with Maori and Pasifika communities
e Completed.

¢ Implementation of Pacific Education Plan
e Completed and has now been transferred to Tapasa

NAG 3 Personnel
¢ None specified

NAG 4 & 5 Property, Finance, Health & Safety
e Review MOU with CST
- Not met — postponed to 2021

NAG 6 Legislation
= Ensure Education Act amendments in place
e Target met and monitoring changes to Education and Training Bill Act

NAG 7 Charter
= Complete Charter
e Target met

NAG 8 Analysis of Variance
= Complete Analysis of Variance
e Target met
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Strategic Plan 2014 - 2019

CURRICULUM

At Middleton Grange School pupils experience a seamless, biblically-based Curriculum that is authentic and
encourages critical engagement with contemporary society.

In 2019 our curriculum is

= Biblically-based and authentically infused by the Foundational Principles for Curricula (FPC)

= seamless across Years 1 — 13

= innovative in meeting the needs of akonga

= challenging, develops critical thinking, and inspires action

= Turangawaewae — encouraging confidence in pupil identity, language and culture with Christ as the foundation.
BUILDING PROFESSIONAL CAPACITY

At Middleton Grange School all teachers are reflective, lifelong learners. They deliver the highest quality
teaching and learning within and across Year Levels and learning areas.

In 2019:

= professional learning and development is regular, differentiated and of the highest quality

a de-privatised teaching culture is built on trust and strong, professional relationships

new and appropriate technologies are integrated into teaching practice

effective practice is clarified, personalised and embedded

achievement data (qualitative and quantitative) is easily accessed and regularly used in meaningful ways to
improve the learning of all akonga

= pupil voice regularly informs planning and teaching through inquiry and reflective practice

= middle leaders are instructional leaders

CULTURE

At Middleton Grange School pupils, parents and staff work within a culture of excellence with Christ’s
character permeating every aspect of school life. As a connected family, we serve together, celebrate with
one another, and realise the gifts God has placed in us.

In 2019, our culture is:

= Christ-centred, striving for personal best in all endeavours — "My utmost for His highest"

= one of personal and professional commitment to a rigorous learning community — Ako

= respectful, restorative, and holds one another accountable — whanaungatanga

= connected, practising hospitality and kindness — manaakitanga

= one where effort, success and the school's ethos are appreciated and celebrated

PARENT COMMUNITY

At Middleton Grange School there is high quality communication and a strong partnership between home
and school. Parents are actively involved in the life of the school for the benefit of pupils, and have a
clear understanding of a biblically-based education.

In 2019:

= parents are involved in the life of the school for the benefit of the pupils.

= two-way communication between home and school supports teaching and learning

SERVICE

At Middleton Grange School pupils, parents and staff are motivated by love and compassion to serve
purposefully within school, local and wider communities. Opportunities for all pupils to use their giftings for
practical acts of service are provided through our curriculum and school life.

In 2019:

» an authentic culture of service exists across our school community

the curriculum provides opportunities for service

pupils are using their gifts to serve

sustainable programmes of local, national and international mission operate

parents serve within classroom, co-curricular and mission activity

Learning with the Christchurch Christian Schools Network and the Riccarton Learning Community Cluster
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Strategic Goals Analysis of Variance 2019

Middleton Grange School_Annual Plan 2019

Strategic Goal CURRICULUM

At Middleton Grange School pupils experience a seamless, biblically-based Curriculum that is authentic and encourages critical engagement

with contemporary society.

Annual Goal: Years 11—-13 Curriculum Delivery and Assessment
Remove undue pressure on pupils and staff caused by assessment loading and timing

Respond to NCEA review changes in a way that

= Promotes waiora for MGS pupils and staff; and
= Enhances teaching and learning opportunities

Key: Blue = Middle School Green = Senior College

Monitor rigorously: any changed Assessment loading; assessment calendar; e-assessment trials, advances and readiness

Ruth Velluppillai

Key Improvement Strategies (KIS)

When What Who | Alert Analysis of Variance
Term 1 ¢ Identify and communicate deleted Achievement Standards to pupils and parents Vp © KIS Met
via email
e Document the above changes in the Course Booklet for 2020 De ®) KIS Met
e identify assessment bottlenecks and address these where possible CcC
o Clarify with CLT - all assessment date changes to be run through Curriculum © KIS Met
Committee before actioning Ma
¢ Identify subjects for e-assessment trialling at CLT meeting CcC KIS Met
= Monitor progress of NCEA Reform Review CLT © KIS Not met
e Investigate potential impact on staff and pupil waiora of changes ©
Term 2 » Feedback from staff and pupils end of Term on a) impact of assessment
changes and b) other assessment issues
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»  Seek update on e-assessment developments, progress and readiness
(processes and infrastructure) © KIS Met

= Monitor assessment calendar and resolve issues leading to unnecessary stress CLT
= Monitor progress of NCEA Reform Review Dn, Cs KIS Met
= Identify any changes required to curriculum delivery and/or content © On-going
= Explore implications of changes for Timetabling/Staffing

Term 3 & 4 1. Feedback from pupils on impact of fewer Achievement Standards (+ve/-ve) CcC @) KIS Met
2. Review assessment load and make recommendations CLT © KIS Met
= Monitor progress of NCEA Reform Review Vp On-going
3. Prepare for changes required (as above), minimising negative impact On-going
4. Communicate these to parents and pupils if appropriate On-going

Resourcing:

Commentary (added to during the year as the KIS are reviewed)

Term 1

Many changes to assessment credits have been made and are printed in the Course Booklet for this year as well as available on the Website. Some Curriculum Areas (CAs)
elected to make extra Standards optional for those pupils who wanted to enhance their qualifications. No ‘essential’ Standards have been removed. Level 1 Christian Studies
removed one of two 6-credit assessments, in 2018 as a means of reducing the increasing stress and weariness of pupils, and Level 2 Christian Studies is doing the same
this year. Feedback will be sought from pupils and staff next term on the effectiveness of assessment reduction across all curricula for achieving this.

CLT were encouraged at a recent meeting to signal their wish to participate in trial e-assessment so no further progress on that at this stage.

There has been no real progress on the NCEA Reform Review to date.

Progress of NCEA Reform Review - silence on this for some time. Many of the projected changes to date have aroused concern around the country’s school leaders and
some iteration of the original proposal can be expected — or a completely new direction. Until this comes forth, the potential impact on Staff waiora remains unquantifiable.
The impact of uncertainty on Waiora appears at present to be minimal.

Term 2

Deans have done much of the de-stressing as it has applied mainly to individuals and arising from their personal situations. There has been less of a mass-frailty than we
experienced last year. There are one or two subjects that cause stress annually — room for finding ways to alleviate this systemically, perhaps.
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NCEA Update became available late this term with an unpalatable directive for schools’ curriculum content and delivery. The details are hazy and implementation of the
plan problematic in terms of administrative complexity. This is seen as a backward step, away from individual needs programme design that we all know is essential for
young people’s development and preparation for life. The targets set have proven to be premature due to the Ministry’s meanderings. Awaiting details and next steps
before embarking on any form of timetable and/or staffing tinkering.

Term 3 and 4

Varying responses from pupils — some concerned about the number of credits available, some keen to do extra (eg, Level 1 Christian Studies) to do an extra Standard. At
present no other adjustments to be made; although on-line assessment is still being trialled and investigated. The full picture will emerge after the exam results are in and
pupils are able to reassess their responses.

Similarly, Curriculum Area end of year debriefs + exam results will bring forth data and analysis of the effect of credits reductions.

NCEA reforms are still unclear so there has been no movement in terms of curriculum design. We can only await further consultation outcomes and MOE decisions on this
before making any responsive plans. The transition into becoming a BYOD school has overtaken any focus on what might be involved in the “Change, Challenge and
Compromise” promised by the Ministry. 2020 may be the time of revelation of actual and detailed directions.

Next Steps

Implement BYOD and be prepared to respond to further Ministry publications on NCEA reform/review when and if they are distributed.
Middleton Grange School will continue to offer a rigorous curriculum and to apply the PLD that is offered on Monday mornings in the most
advantageous way for our akonga.

Abbreviation Key Vp: Ruth Velluppillai; De: Martin de Ruiter; Ma: Stephen McConnachie; CC: Curriculum Committee; Dn: Janet Dixon: CLT: Curriculum Leadership Team;
BYOD: Bring Your Own Device
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Strategic Goal CURRICULUM
At Middleton Grange School pupils experience a seamless, biblically-based Curriculum that is authentic and encourages critical engagement with
contemporary society.

Annual Goal — Assessment and Reporting Years 1-10
Post National Standards, we aim to provide timely and accurate reporting to parents and pupils that has of consistency from Years 1 — 8.

The assessment methods chosen will provide:
11 Up to date and accurate information

12 Feedback to pupils and parents

13 Achievement that will clearly show progress as well as next learning steps. Rod Thompson / Matt Barlow
Key Improvement Strategies (KIS)
When What Who | Alert Analysis of Variance
Term 1 e In Years 1 — 6, preparation to move from paper reporting to electronic reporting Rod @ KIS met
using Linc Ed

e Continued development and embedding of Writing Progressions and Assessment Jan K/Bc © | KIS met

linked to Write that Essay Professional Development (Years 5-10) (KIS determined
by success of next round of central PLD funding)

e . . _ Matt/Rod © | KIS met
o Participation in Kahui Ako Assessment and Reporting Project (Years 1-10) all year K3hui Ako

KIS in Progress deferred from Terms 1
e Years 7/8 Reporting Review (Spiral of Inquiry — Investigating and Collaborative Bw/Bc/Ke ® and 2

Sense-Making Phase)

Term 2 = Years 1 — 6 mid-year reports will be provided to parents electronically using Linc Rod @ KIS met
Ed (With an alternative hard copy for some families)
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©

= Years 7/8 Reporting Review (Spiral of Inquiry - Prioritising to Take Action Phase) Bw/Bc/Ke KIS met (initial phase)
Mid-year reports to trial any proposed changes to the way progress is reported.

Term 3 & 4 5. Embedding of Assessment and Reporting Practices using Linc Ed in the Primary Rod/Geoff
School. End-of-year reporting to be electronic format. Ke, Geoff, KIS met
Nick

6. Sharing of Assessment information for the transition between Year 6 and 7 —

particularly given the change from Linc Ed to KAMAR at this point. Bw/Bc/Ke KIS Met

7.Years 7/8 Reporting Review (Spiral of Inquiry - Prioritising to Take Action an Bw KIS not met
Implementation Phase) Feedback will be sought from the parent community about @)
changes to Mid-year reports. End of Year reports will have adopted any
recommended changes from the spiral of inquiry

Resourcing:
Commentary (added to during the year as the KIS are reviewed)

Term 1
Year 7/8 Reporting Review: The initial phases of this review have been shifted to Term 3 in order to embed / focus on our Middle School Social Culture Plan.

Term 2:
See above in relation to the Mid -Year reports — survey has been finalised and will be presented to the Curriculum Committee in Week 3 of Term 3 prior to it being sent to

families of Year 7 and 8 pupils.
Data was provided in relation to Year 7 and 8 Writing as part of the Kahui Ako assessment project. We have not had any further requests for involvement or participation
from leadership group. We continue to be willing to be involved as required.

Term 3:
During term 3 we began transition proceedings for Year 6 — 7. This extended beyond just reporting and assessment information to behavioural expectations etc. Bw

spoke with the Year 6 students about expectations in the MS. Nick communicated these to parents and has adopted the same practices in order to prepare the students
for 2020. Communication about assessments and the types of data we would like from the Year 6 team have occurred as has the ability to gain access to LincEd.

The 7/8 Reporting review has been on hold - a survey has been created and is ready to send out to parents. I have held back on sending this for two reasons. 1. There
has been some initial discussion about whether this needs to go wider than just Year 7/8. 2. The realisation that we won't be making or adopting any changes to the EQY
reports and any changes will be likely for Mid -Year 2020.
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Term 4:
Electronic reporting in Years 1 — 6 worked well. The quality and quantity of information provided to parents was very good, and included the next learning steps in

Reading, Writing and Mathematics as well as comments on the Key Competencies and ‘Heart’ (Character) aspects of a child’s development. ‘Reports’ can be printed out if
parents wish to keep a paper copy. They are cumulative which means that a parent can see everything a child has achieved during the years spent in the Primary School.
The Year 7/8 Reporting review was not completed in 2019 — this will be absorbed into 2020’s annual plan (Annual goal 2.2) looking at Middle School Curriculum with a
wider scope.

Next Steps
Abbreviation Key Bc: Christine Buckley; Bw: Matt Barlow; Ke: Tony Kendrew
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Strategic Goals

CURRICULUM
At Middleton Grange School pupils experience a seamless, biblically-based Curriculum that is authentic and encourages critical engagement with
contemporary society.

BUILDING PROFESSIONAL CAPACITY
At Middleton Grange School all teachers are reflective, lifelong learners. They deliver the highest quality teaching and learning within and across Year
Levels and learning areas.

Annual Goal : e-Learning and BYOD pedagogy

Increase staff confidence in the use of IT and shift the current levels of digital fluency, seamlessly integrate eLearning pedagogy through the
lens of a culturally responsive curriculum, develop a collaborative and supportive staff professional development program which follows the
spiral of inquiry to meet the needs of the akonga

Jenny Addison / Craig Utting

Key Improvement Strategies (KIS)

When What Who | Alert Analysis of Variance
Term 1 ¢ Assess the staff level of digital fluency across the school Ma
e Create a shared understanding about what culturally responsive practice looks As, Ma, KIS met
like Ut &)
As
e Outline the PLD program to the staff for the 2019 — share vision and
: KIS met
expectations DTHM
e DTHM advisory group meet and set priorities and timelines for implementation ICT &'
into the curriculum (includes consultation with CLT). CLT
Ma, As KIS ongoing throughout 2019/2020
e Lead the targeted and differentiated eLearning PLD
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Term 2 & 3 = Continue to embed elearning as a core classroom practice Ma KIS met
» Encourage pupil voice through focus groups Ma ®
»  Expose teaching staff best practice in other schools Ma, As
= Teaching staff to work through their own spiral of inquiry as part of appraisal. | All staff
This involves raising digital fluency, use of digital tools and pedagogical
knowledge to impact the akdnga.
= Celebrate milestones Ma, As (o met
Term 4 = elearning Jumbo days to equip and upskill staff with tools strategies and build | Ma, As KIS met (continue in 2020)
confidence
= Reassess staff digital fluency Ma KIS not met
8. Reflect on progress to date to inform next steps and approach for 2020 As,UIL/Ia,
Resourcing:
Commentary (added to during the year as the KIS are reviewed)
Term 1

A very successful Term with progress made on all KIS. Staff are well equipped in their understanding of Digital Fluency and aware of areas for improvement. The PLD
programme has been articulated with all staff as have the expectations regarding the new DTHM. A small group continues to focus on staff fluency and awareness for the
DTHM. Stephen M is doing a great job in coordinating the digital fluency PLD with Jenny Addison.

Term 2/3

We continue to make excellent progress towards our eLearning and Digital Fluency targets. Staff are becoming more and more confident in the use of various
technologies along with a range of digital tools to use in the classroom. A priority for the remainder of Term 3 is the pupil focus groups along with the socialization of the
BYOD programme to the school community. CL are visiting local schools to view BYOD best practice and to facilitate conversation with CL in those schools.

Term 4

The eLearning Jumbo days were a great success with staff having the opportunity to increase their digital fluency and continue an inquiry as to how they will incorporate
the DTHM into the various curriculum areas.

The ICT committee has focused on the DTHM implementation, BYOD and core infrastructure.

Next Steps

Abbreviation Key: As = Jenny Addison, Ma = Stephen McConnachie, Ut = Craig Utting, DTMH = Digital Technologies and Hangarau Matihiko,
CLT= Curriculum Leaders
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Strategic Goals

CURRICULUM

Middleton Grange School provides pupils with a seamless, biblically-based Curriculum that is authentic and encourages critical engagement with
contemporary society.

BUILDING PROFESSIONAL CAPACITY
At Middleton Grange School all teachers are reflective, lifelong learners. They deliver the highest quality teaching and learning within and across Year

Levels and learning areas.

Annual Goal: CENCOL Kahui Ako — Writing, Leadership, ESOL
That all staff with a role in the Kahui Ako have a clear understanding of the nature of the role and a plan to achieve the goals for their area of
responsibility. Regular monitoring of progress will ensure staft will meet Key performance Indicators.

Key Improvement Strategies (KIS)

When What Who | Alert Analysis of Variance

Term 1 o Ensure that all Across school teachers have a clear job description and Key VL KIS met
Performance Indicators in place for the year. Goals for the year are identified
and a plan is prepared to achieve the goals. Present to SLT by Week 2.

o All Within School Teachers have clear job descriptions with Key Performance uT KIS met
Indicators in place for the year. Goals for the year are identified and a plan is
prepared to achieve the goals. Present to SLT by Week 2.

 Twice termly meeting with Within School teachers to discuss progress towards ut KIS not met
the goals set.
uT ©® | KIS met (WST not AST)
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e Progress report of work for all Across school teachers and Within School
teachers is provided to the SLT in Week 9.
Term 2 o Twice termly meeting with Within School teachers to discuss progress towards uT KIS met
the goals set.
e Progress report of work for all Across school teachers and Within School
teachers is provided to the SLT in Week 9. ut ® KIS met (WST not AST)
Term 3 & 4 ¢ Twice termly meeting with Within School teachers to discuss progress towards uT KIS met
the goals set.
o Progress report of work for all Across school teachers and Within School uT KIS met
teachers is provided to the SLT in Week 9.
e Interview for WST Col roles in 2020 uT KIS met

Resourcing:
Commentary (added to during the year as the KIS are reviewed)

Term 1
Excellent progress against all KIS. Within school teachers have clear job descriptions with KPI. All WST are meeting the KPI and have met with AP (Ut). No reports have
been presented to the SLT from the AST.

Term 2/3

WST meet with Ut to highlight the work they are focussing on. All WST teachers are meeting targets set through the KPI. The CoL lead Principal (Steve Frost) meets with
the AST to discuss progress.

Some WST personnel have facilitated workshops for other staff to attend eg Shane McConnell has hosted an event for CL to attend.

Term 4
WST meet with Ut to highlight the work they are focussing on. All WST teachers met the majority of targets set for 2019. Applications were received from over 20 staff
for 8 WST CoL positions for 2020. 13 staff were interviewed and 8 appointed for roles: Teaching Christianly, Bi-Cultural practice, Writing, eLearning and Waiora.

Next Steps
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Abbreviation Key UT — Craig Utting; VI: R Vanderpyl

Middleton Grange School_Annual Plan 2019

Strategic Goal CULTURE
At Middleton Grange School pupils, parents and staff work within a culture of resilience, belonging and honour with Christ’s character permeating every
aspect of school life. As a connected family, we serve together, celebrate with one another, and realise the gifts God has placed in us.

Annual Goal —'Waiora
7o build on the Waiora progress from 2018 and develop an improved social culture programme at all levels of the school based on needs identified from
pupil voice, NZCER surveys and emerging challenges identified by the Pastoral Team.

= We will continue with Chris Jansen as Wellbeing Community of Practice (COP) Mentor [Has not been offered as we expected]
= We will continue with weekly Waiora Guidance Meetings

» The Waiora Lead Team will meet once a term

= The Waiora Pupil Leaders will attend and will take assemblies

= SLT Learning walks around all classes Years 1-13 will include Waiora foci in the questions around emotional safety in class and assessment
pressure which will provide pupil voice

= We will offer a variety of approaches for delivery other than one-off sessions and assemblies

=  We will link/connect the language relating to our Pro-social culture across the whole school

=  We will provide follow-up and wrap-around from pastoral Team after all key events

= S Bisseker [CENCOL Waiora role] will co-ordinate the oversight of the Social Culture Plan [S.C.P.]

Emerging Challenges:
= Employment pressures. Pupils not able to make assessments owing to outside jobs. Parent supported decision

= Increasing pressure of domestic duties owing to both parents working or single parent situation
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Social media increasingly addiction interfering with sleep and brain processes
Changing social norms applying pressure [sex, pornography, sexting]

Fallout from viewing pornography at a younger age [Years 7]

Using a social media platform to threaten and extort, also at a younger age
Social media influencers; dangerous diets, challenges, expectations
Expectations from family and school regarding Christianity

Mental health; depression, anxiety, cutting and suicide ideation

Key Improvement Strategies (KIS) for Social Culture at MGS

What Who Alert Analysis of Variance
Staff o Staff TOD Report back on Pupil and Staff Surveys January 29th Waiora Lead
Staff PD slot once a term Restorative Practice (RP): Recognising Team © | KIS Met
conflict, harassment and bullying
» Restorative Practice training to all staff Matla/Jansen
¢ Leading by example by teaching pupils the strategies to use RP Staff/Waiora © KIS met and well received!
and restore relationships. Lead Team
o At.tention 'to ‘Duty’ Bgster and how to support staff in out of class Cs © | KIS met
with conflict recognition and management.
¢ Re-establish a staff social committee. [Not SLT] &
o Present_ MS Form Teachers with the Strategy for development of Bw © | KIS met
the Social Culture Plan.
o Staff and Parent evening; PD Collett Smart ‘They’'ll be OK- 15
Conversations to Help you Child through Troubled Times.’ © | KIS met
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«S Bisseker to co- ordinate resources and prepare devotions for (%)

Form Time/Vertical Group
¢NZCER Full Survey for 12/13 and targeted tracking for 6-11

oStudy Skills Year 11 Term 1

¢ Christian Focus Day with Waiora Focus re spiritual wellbeing

eTerm 1 Presentation re Sexting and the Harmful Digital
Communications Act (HDCA) now to Years 9 and 11

eKoblers will be presenting on Healthy Relationships alternating year
levels. 2019: Year 12/13 and parents

eMen of Honour Years 11/12

eReal Talk Seminars and Reflections all day Year 11-12 [sex,
relationships and personal identity...looking at the repercussions of
poor choices and the fruits of positive choices] in the Men of
Honour programme. Parent Evening

eMartin Swann ‘What Women Want’ Year 12

eDriver /education for Life Skills Year 12 offered

eEndometriosis Talk Year 11

e Activity pack being used in Years 1-10 classes
ePromotion of the Growth Mind Set Years 1-6 and 7-10

eRemoving bias 1-13 [See SG Building professional capacity &

e Digital Discipleship

¢24/7 Worker Female and 1 male; lunchtime meetings

¢ Middle School Leadership Team: Development of a ‘Social Culture
Plan” which promotes, encourages and holds pupils accountable to
actions and behaviours that form a positive social culture.

Bi

Bi

Vp
Vp/NL

Cs

Vp

Sn

Sn

Vp
Vp

Rod/Bw

Cs

Ma

Bw

®©® @ © © © 00O

© © 6 ©

® ©

Not met. Will carry over to 2020
KIS met
KIS met
KIS met

KIS met for Year 11

KIS met

KIS met

KIS met
KIS met
KIS met

KIS not met — MS didn't use it this
year

KIS met - MS

KIS not met
KIS Met

KIS met
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¢MSLT will develop a strategy for the implementation of the Social )
Culture plan based on a ‘culture of belonging, a culture of honour Work in progress and forms the
and a culture of resilience.’ basis of Waiora COL work 2020

' N Vp and team )
*Y13 Focus Days — Speakers on alcohol and drugs; relationships;

KIS Met
current issues (LGBTQI); maintaining faith after school

Resourcing:

Commentary (added to during the year as the KIS are reviewed)

Term 1 NZCER surveys for year levels 5-13 have been successfully completed. Simon Bisseker has carried out extensive analysis and written similarly
extensive reports on all year levels, identifying what are areas of great practice and areas requiring development. We have also surveyed all teaching staff
with the NZCER Wellbeing survey this year.

Many of our plans above are a direct result of areas identified in these surveys.

Koblers attended — presented to Y12 and Y13 pupils (Y11 were addressed as Y10 in 2018). Parents were invited to an evening presentation but due to a
number of meetings requiring their presence, numbers were lower than usual. Those who came felt ALL parents should attend!

Stuart Wright presented Study Skills to senior pupils and parents. Greatly appreciated - by parents in particular.

Term 2 Still sourcing effective presenters on driver education. Some Vertical Group teachers are using longer form times for teaching basic life skills. The
Term 3 Christian Focus Day (CFD) include a component on life skills such as choosing flatmates, budgeting, planning meals etc.

24/7 Youth Workers are closely involved with pupils across the board. One is doing Teacher Aid work on a paid basis with outstanding results.

Pupils know the young people are available and are very comfortable with them. Prisca is particularly active and ‘present’ - a very safe confidante.

Head pupils are contributing to CFD planning and guiding the usefulness of the content and delivery. The hope is to set Y13 up with some solid tips on
how to be in their worlds yet separated from ungodly practices and life-styles. The Middle School did not use the anti-bullying resource kit this year but
have included these principles in other forums — assemblies, form time discussions, devotions etc.

Term 3 Term 3 was an exciting term of our Waiora work starting to come together. We had a full staff meeting with Restorative Practice gurus, Richard
Matla and Greg Jansen working with our staff on low level Restorative Practice conversations. This was an excellent PD session where staff learned the
underpinning principles of RP and also went through various scenarios, practising how to have RP conversations predominantly outside the classroom,
which was identified by staff through the NZCER Survey as an area they needed support in. The Men of Honour programme continued to bring speakers
into the school, the Year 13 Christian Focus Day excelled with past pupils telling their stories post leaving MGS which was hugely encouraging with the
best pupil feedback recorded for years. We saw breakthrough with some year 12 girls after much intervention from the Dean and the 24/7 team. Our
counselling Team continued to meet with pupils and parents, while guiding many to outside agencies for extra support. The Waiora Lead Team continued
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to develop the Social Culture Plan working towards a graduate profile-where do we hope our young people are when they leave MGS regarding their sense
of belonging, resilience and honour.

Of particular note, the Waiora Lead Team had an opportunity to present their work to the Staff at the CENCOL TOD in September. The other CENCOL
schools were reviewing which model of wellbeing to adopt whereas MGS had started working of developing our own in 2018, based on the Maori health
model — Te Whare Tapa Wha' — the four cornerstones (or sides) of Maori health. Our Waiora Framework is based on the foundation stone of the Christ-
our turangawaewae-, is three sided with pou reflecting our school motto of Character, Excellence, Service, encompassing our Social Culture Plan foci of
Resilience, Honour and Belonging, and has a shelter of protection from factors that affect our waiora...social wellbeing, mental/emotional wellbeing and
physical wellbeing. We presented our visual model to staff asking for feedback. We also presented an update on the work done so far with the results of
the NZCER surveys, the SCP to date. Staff had identified a need to develop how to deal with pupils in duty situations, so a presentation based on the PB4L
[Positive Behaviour for Learning] was developed Years 1-13 and delivered to all staff.

Term 4

Planning for 2020 Strategic goals began and Waiora has been incorporated into 2020 Strategic Goal 2: Responsive Christ-centred Curriculum- sub section
2.4: [that our curriculum] promotes engagement, excellence, waiora and equity for all. The core Social Plan documents were worked on and wording
aligned between the Primary, Middle and Senior schools.

Next Steps

Abbreviation Key Cs: Megan Cassidy; Bw: Matt Barlow; Bi: Simon Bisseker; Vp: Ruth Velluppillai; NI: Anita Neilson; Sn: Geoff Steyn; COP; Community of
Practice; SCP Social Culture Plan” TBA: To Be Determined; MSLT: Middle School Leadership Team
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Strategic Goal Leadership and Service
Middleton Grange School equips pupils through opportunities for training and experience in both leadership and followership to prayerfully discern their

society and to respond as drivers of godly transformation and bearers of godly character who are positioned to transform their spheres of influence

Annual Goal : Centre for Leadership Development and Influence
Middleton Grange School offers a comprehensive, age-appropriate leadership and service programme from Y1-13 that seeks to grow strong and godly
young leaders who:
» Understand that the heart of leadership is active service
» Understand and practice a biblical expression of leadership
= Exemplify the characteristics of effective leaders
= Are motivated by a genuine desire to serve God and others
= Are passionate about seeking and fulfilling God’s place for them in His redemptive purposes
= Can, when confronted with a wide range of opportunities, identify roles that complement their own gifts and abilities
» Have received training in leadership
» Have gained experience in meaningful leadership and service roles
= A key support for this Annual Plan is the Leadership Hub
Craig Utting / Ruth Velluppillai / Matt Barlow

B Ms I sc [l Both Key Improvement Strategies (KIS)
When What Who | Alert Analysis of Variance
Term 1 ¢ Embed the new pupil leadership structure Bw, Vp, KIS Met
e Brainstorm further opportunities for pupil leadership and service LHF
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Facilitate opportunities for the leadership teams to interact with each other (7/8
and 9/10 as well as MS with PS and SC)

Create a dossier of potential speakers on the specific skills of leading and Lr
following
Establish an operational framework and working relationship with the LHF ® | KISstill in progress
Coordinator
Develop a wider Leadership Development Strategy that will develop MGS pupils Vp / Bw
in general (ie not just tho§e |.n Ieader'shlp ro!es or teams) with a variety of Ut/ Lr © KIS still in progress
attributes consummate with influencing society both as a leader and a follower LHF
Develop a structured leadership programme for pupils within Leadership Roles
and Teams
Establish both Year 7/8 and 9/10 Leadership teams for the year (plan meetings, | Bw / Ke @ KIS still in progress
outline programmes, assemblies etc)
Ascertain which aspects of the wider leadership development strategy are most
suitable and applicable to the Middle School Bw / Ke KIS Met
Application process for members for each leadership team. KIS Met
. . o . Bw / Ke €
Profile leaders and leadership opportunities in Assemblies
Pupils attend workshops to discuss and discern the nature of Godly leadership
A . : . KIS Met
Equip TiC to offer quality support and mentoring to pupils Vp
Pupil leaders and their parents share a meal and korero (to bring parents on Leaders
board) LHF KIS Met
Develop a training programme and activities calendar
. . KIS Met
Gather feedback from pupil leaders on experience to date and support needs
KIS Met
KIS Met verbally
Term 2 Confirm and Implement the wider Leadership Development Strategy including Bw / Ke KIS Met
connections with the Leadership LHF Coordinator.
Continue regular leadership team meetings that include both leadership Bw / Ke KIS Met
development and event planning / implementation. © KIS Met in part
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Bw / Ke
¢ Discern school and wider community needs and target activities toward serving Vp/
those needs Rod
¢ Invite interested parents to explore with us opportunities for further service and Senior
leadership opportunities that might draw more pupils into these experiences Pupil
¢ Implement the training programme Leaders
e Bring in speakers on specific topics for assemblies LHF
o Seek feedback from pupils on impact of leaders’ activities and suggestions for
further opportunities in the areas of service and leadership
Term 3 9. Select the Senor Pupil Leaders for 2020 Vp
e Year 7/8 and 9//10 Leadership Teams planning and running initiatives Bw / Ke
across the various teams. KIS Met
e Wider pupil leadership development strategy is being executed — .
. . . . Bw / Ke ® KIS met in part
speakers, opportunities advertised, LHF being utilised etc LHF
10. Continue training and activities programmes KIS Met
11. Bring in speakers on specific topics for assemblies KIS Nc?t Met
12. Design and implement feedback and suggestions activity KIS Met
Term 4 e Select Senior Pupil Leaders for the following year via application and selection Bw / Ke KIS Met
process Bw /K KIS Met
e Year 7/8 and 9//10 Leadership Teams planning and running initiatives W /ke €
across the various teams. Bw / Ke
e Wider pupil leadership development strategy is being executed — LHE © KIS Met in part
speakers, opportunities advertised, LHF being utilised etc
e New Pupil Leaders attend a day of Visioning for 2020 (after NCEA exams) Vp/LHF KIS Met
Resourcing:
Commentary (added to during the year as the KIS are reviewed)
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Term 1

Middle School:

Both the Year 7 and 8 and Year 9/10 Leadership teams have been established and are up and running effectively. The Year 7 and 8 teams are brimming with enthusiasm
and ideas and the structure of staff support and input is working well. The Year 9/10 team enjoyed an afternoon of specific leadership development although this was cut
short by the lockdown that occurred on March 15%. The leadership teams are becoming well established now since their inception at the end of 2017,

Events of Term one meant that some planned meetings and conversations were deferred. This included conversations with Keryn Malcolm and Vp. These will be
continued in Term 2.

It was pleasing to have a combined informal meeting with the Senior College, Middle School and Primary Leaders. It was great to have the leaders meet and pray for
each other during this time.

Senior College

The 2019 team have started strongly and are led by an impressive group of Head leaders with an extra-ordinary passion for the spiritual health and development of their
fellow pupils, right through the school. The parent evening of sharing dinner and thoughts was valuable and has provided a good support for the pupils.

Ideas are flowing more rapidly than there is space in the school calendar for them. Their heart to improve the circumstances of the ‘needy’ compels them into dreaming
up all kinds of projects to raise the funds necessary to be effective. We are trying to be more creative than just mufti days, which are in shorter supply than their wishes
and this is good for sharpening their initiative. The TiC training has not really taken off, largely on account of the number of trauma situations experienced through the
term. Most teams have connected with their TiC, but there will be more support for those teachers from next term.

The whole team have done their Strengthsfinder surveys and coaching and the team coaching will occur in Term 2.

Term 2: Middle School

The leadership teams are functioning effectively in across the Middle School. Both Teams (7/8 and 9/10) have planned an implemented a variety of activities and events
and this will continue in Term 3. The MS production will have an impact on pupil’s availability given it's major focus and the fact that it includes a significant number of
pupils who are in leadership roles. It continues to be a challenge to have groups working with each other due to time constraints and the full and busy schedules that our
pupils have. We will continue to look for ways to effectively prioritise these. We are still awaiting the final developments of the Centre for Leadership and Influence. Term
3 will see opportunities for further dialogue for the Middle School.

Term 3: Middle School

The leadership teams continue to function effectively. There is a ground-swell of enthusiasm particularly at Year 7/8 level. They successfully ran a social event to raise
money for World Vision. The Year 9 and 10 Dance was successfully run by the leadership teams. As predicted, the production has limited participation as a number of the
leaders are involved. Several meetings have occurred with the director of the Centre of Leadership and Influence. In Term 4 we will finalise the programme and
opportunities for leadership development with leadership teams as well as other wider opportunities.

Term 3: Senior College
Training this term focused on transitioning to a new leadership group. The Head Leaders had on-the-job training in interviewing during the new Leader Selection process.
Due to the busyness of the term and the small number of assemblies, there was no space for speakers to assembly.
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Feedback centred around gathering student voice from the current leaders, who chose to present their comments in the form of a “Suggestions and Advice” booklet for
the incoming new leaders. This was distributed to the leaders immediately upon selection. The team leaders from 2019 paired up with the 2020 leaders to talk them
through their experience and observations. A further “round table” discussion took place in the regular meeting time to debrief the year, with strongly positive input from
the students about the process, the structure and the freedom-within-boundaries that they enjoyed over the year.

Term 4: Middle School
2020 Leadership groups were selected and announced at our final assembly — this was via the application process. The current leadership teams continued to implement
activities and ideas. Now that the CIL has been opened we will be looking to utilise it and Keryn as the director more fully in 2020.

Term 4: Senior College
The newly selected leaders took part in a 2-day initiation programme where they mused over aspects of leadership and began to develop a vision as an entity and within
their portfolios.

Next Steps

Term 2:
Bw to meet with Vp and Keryn Malcolm to discuss wider leadership development strategies

Select Leaders for 2020
Abbreviation Key Bw: Matt Barlow; Vp: Ruth Velluppilai; Ut: Craig Utting; LHF: Leadership Hub Facilitator; Ke: Tony Kendrew;
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Parent Voluntary Donation and
Special Character 2019

As a State Integrated school Middleton Grange School enjoys government funding for teaching staff
salaries and daily operations based on our school roll. This is a real blessing, but it does not cater for the
specific provision and development of the Special Character of the school. Parents fund and support this
aspect through Special Character donations.

The greatest resource God has given Middleton Grange School is committed Christian staff; however, most
teachers employed at Middleton Grange School have not been trained in Christian Tertiary

institutions. Middleton Grange School has developed a professional development programme funded by
parents to coach teachers in teaching Christianly. This sets us apart as a Christian school and is essential
to maintaining the Christian foundation in our Curriculum.

In 2019 the focus of the Special Character funding was to continue to support Science Teachers in
developing their understanding of the rationale and philosophy underpinning Christian education. This has
been particularly beneficial to the Science Curriculum Area. Several staff were also funded and supported
to attend conferences both in New Zealand and around the world, to further develop their understanding
and ability to implement Christian education at Middleton Grange School.

Mr David Elder, Curriculum Leader Humanities, continued to lead weekly sessions and provided the
teachers with readings, organized speakers to attend meetings and worked alongside individual teachers to
assist them in their understanding of Christian Education. Throughout the year the teachers engaged in
robust discussion and this led to a common understanding and appreciation for Christian

education. Current school practices were measured against a maturing understanding of the principles
necessary for an authentic Christian school.

Another portion of the Special Character donation is spent to support activities funded in the same way as
other schools eg: the donations are used to support the school magazine, school library, handbooks,
staffing of classes where numbers are small, sports funding. This part of the donations is essential to
ensure we can offer a first-rate general education and a wide range of activities that support the holistic
education offered at Middleton Grange School.

The school is blessed with a good number of donations annually and is grateful to the parents for their
support, however it needs to be noted that there has been a general, steady decline in voluntary donations
received by the school over recent years, which is a cause for concern for the Board of Trustees. The Board
is seeking to engage with our school community to investigate why this trend is occurring and exploring
ways of improving this situation for the future.

'Waiora: total wellbeing of the individual and the family
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